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PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Iltem 1. Financial Statements
CENTURY ALUMINUM COMPANY

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Dollars in thousands, except share data)

(Unaudited)
December 31,
June 30, 2012 2011
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 156,51 $ 183,40:
Accounts receivable — net 71,93¢ 47,64
Due from affiliates 34,67: 44,66¢
Inventories 158,53 171,96:
Prepaid and other current assets 43,13 40,64¢
Total current assets 464,78! 488,32(
Property, plant and equipment — net 1,208,02! 1,218,22!
Other assets 106,28: 104,54¢
TOTAL $ 1,779,10. $ 1,811,09.
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable, trade $ 70,36( $ 86,17:
Due to affiliates 43,05t 41,90«
Accrued and other current liabilities 44,71¢ 40,77¢
Accrued employee benefits costs — current portion 16,101 16,69¢
Industrial revenue bonds 7,81¢ 7,81¢
Total current liabilities 182,05: 193,36!
Senior notes payable 250,03¢ 249,51
Accrued pension benefits costs — less current quorti 67,76: 70,89¢
Accrued postretirement benefits costs — less ctipertion 128,42 128,07¢
Other liabilities 39,69( 40,00¢
Deferred taxes 90,83: 90,95¢
Total noncurrent liabilities 576,74¢ 579,45

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (NOTE 10)
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY:
Series A Preferred stock (one cent par value, 500@0shares authorized; 80,623 and 80,718 issukd an

outstanding at June 30, 2012 and December 31, 284fectively) 1 1
Common stock (one cent par value, 195,000,000 stzarthorized; 93,253,570 issued and 88,467,04
outstanding at June 30, 2012; 93,230,848 issue®&8d4,327 outstanding at December 31, 2011 93: 932
Additional paid-in capital 2,507,05: 2,506,84.
Treasury stock, at cost (49,929 (45,89)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (132,06) (134,589
Accumulated deficit (1,305,69) (1,289,019
Total shareholders’ equity 1,020,29 1,038,27
TOTAL $ 1,779,10. $ 1,811,009

See notes to consolidated financial statements

3




Table of Contents

CENTURY ALUMINUM COMPANY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

(Unaudited)

NET SALES:
Third-party customers
Related parties

Cost of goods sold
Gross profit
Other operating expenses (income) — net
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Operating income (loss)
Interest expense — third party
Interest income — third party
Interest income — related parties
Net gain (loss) on forward contracts
Other income (expense) - net
Income (loss) before income taxes and equity iniegs of joint ventures
Income tax expense
Income (loss) before equity in earnings of joinbtuges
Equity in earnings of joint ventures
Net income (loss)
Net income (loss) allocated to common shareholders
EARNINGS (LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE:
Basic and Diluted
WEIGHTED AVERAGE COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING:
Basic
Diluted

Three months ended June

30, Six months ended June 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011
$ 184,02 207,09: $ 372,86. $ 395,40:
139,59 159,18t 276,94¢ 297,21
323,61¢ 366,27 649,80¢ 692,61
317,66 316,76: 623,26( 600,78
5,957 49,51« 26,54¢ 91,83(
3,817 (5,20%) 7,53¢ (11,089
7,151 18,557 15,61( 29,16¢
(5,01 36,16 3,401 73,75
(5,94¢) (6,38€) (11,929 (13,169
118 65 251 22C
2 70 62 18¢
1,45(C (1,61%) (3,709 (6,426
161 (1,132) 467 (45%)
(9,23)) 27,16: (11,457 54,117
(3,399 (3,63€) (6,216 (6,759
(12,62¢) 23,52¢ (17,669 47,35
34¢ 46C 99C 1,67¢
$ (1227) % 23,98t $ (16,679 $ 49,03:
$ (1227) % 22,06 $ (16,679 $ 45,06¢
$ 0.19 % 022 % (0.19 $ 0.4¢
88,45 93,10¢ 88,58¢ 93,03¢
88,45 93,567 88,58¢ 93,43

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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CENTURY ALUMINUM COMPANY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LO SS)
(Dollars in thousands)

(Unaudited)
Three months ended Juni
30, Six months ended June 3
2012 2011 2012 2011

Comprehensive income (loss)
Net income (loss) $ (12,27)$% 2398t $ (16,679 $  49,03:
Other comprehensive income (loss) before incomeffect:

Net unrealized gain (loss) on financial instruments 26 (27) (220) (33

Net loss (gain) reclassified to income on finangiatruments 20¢ (39 481 (50

Net gain on foreign currency cash flow hedges s=sifi@d to income (46) 47) (93 (93
Defined benefit plans and other postretirement fisne

Net gain (loss) arising during the period 49 (5,769 49 (5,769

Amortization of prior service benefit (1,037 (15,507 (2,056 (30,620

Amortization of net loss 2,941 6,99: 5,12¢ 13,28(
Other comprehensive income (loss) before incomefiect 2,14¢ (14,38%) 3,28¢ (23,285

Income tax effect (389) (2,517 (765) (4,979
Other comprehensive income (loss) 1,765 (16,907 2,521 (28,25¢)
Comprehensive income (loss) $§ (1051)% 7,08t § (1415) % 20,77+

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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CENTURY ALUMINUM COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income (loss)

(Dollars in thousands)
(Unaudited)

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to @sthcused in operating activities:

Unrealized net loss on forward contracts
Accrued and other plant curtailment costs — net
Lower of cost or market inventory adjustment
Depreciation and amortization
Debt discount amortization
Pension and other postretirement benefits
Stock-based compensation
Non-cash loss on early extinguishment of debt
Undistributed earnings of joint ventures
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable — net
Due from affiliates
Inventories
Prepaid and other current assets
Accounts payable, trade
Due to affiliates
Accrued and other current liabilities
Other — net
Net cash used in operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Nordural expansion
Purchase of carbon anode assets
Investments in and advances to joint ventures

Payments received on advances from joint ventures

Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and eqeip
Restricted and other cash deposits
Net cash used in investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Repayments of debt
Repayment of contingent obligation
Borrowings under revolving credit facility
Repayments under revolving credit facility
Repurchase of common stock
Issuance of common stock — net
Net cash used in financing activities
CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the period

Cash and cash equivalents, end of the period

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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Six months ended June 30,

2012 2011
(16,67¢) $ 49,03:
3,177 6,17(
2,781 (16,599
(11,619 (16)
31,28¢ 31,06¢
528 1,35¢
(260) (28,609
212 2,501
— 768
(990 (1,679
(24,289 (10,93YH
5,401 11,26
25,04( (31,469
(3,877 (28,99)
(15,93) (1,209
1,151 (5,839
1,75(C 7,57¢
704 (539
(1,615 (16,13%
(6,165 (7,359
(3,586 (7,96¢)
(14,52 —
(200) —
3,16¢ 3,05¢
68 56
— 3,67¢
(21,24 (8,536
— (47,067
— (189
18,07¢ —
(18,07¢) —
(4,039 —
— 32
(4,039 (47,224
(26,889 (71,895
183,40: 304,29¢
156,51: $ 232,40:
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CENTURY ALUMINUM COMPANY
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements fahe
Three and six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011
(Dollar amounts in thousands, except per share amais)
(Unaudited)

1. General

The accompanying unaudited interim consolidatedrfaial statements of Century Aluminum Company sthdvel read in conjunction
with the audited consolidated financial statemémtshe year ended December 31, 2011 . In managésraginion, the unaudited interim
consolidated financial statements reflect all atpemnts, which are of a normal and recurring natiina, are necessary for a fair presentatic
financial results for the interim periods present@derating results for the first six months of 2Gke not necessarily indicative of the results
that may be expected for the year ending Decemhe2@®L2. Throughout this Form 10-Q, and unlesseasgly stated otherwise or as the
context otherwise requires, "Century Aluminum," h@ey," "we," "us," "our" and "ours" refer to CemuAluminum Company and its
consolidated subsidiaries.

2. Asset Acquisitior

In June 2012, our wholly owned subsidiary, Centampdes BV ("Century Anodes"), purchased substdnptél of the assets of the
former Zalco anode production facility located ilisgingen, the Netherlands for approximately $1@,50 connection with the purchase, we
entered into a ground lease with respect to thiéitfethat is renewable at our option. As part béttransaction, Century Anodes will not
assume, and is indemnified against, any histolighilities of the facility.

The anode production facility, which was curtailgdZalco in December 2011, will require a signifitaapital investment to optimize
anode production for our smelter in Grundartangg/dnd ("Grundartangi") and eventually provide a®fbr the planned Helguvik smelter
and to comply with current environmental regulasiowe purchased the assets to provide captive godection for Grundartangi to
replace third-party anode supply contracts thdtteiminate in 2013.

3. Fair value measurement

ASC 820, “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosur@sfines fair value, establishes a framework for sneag fair value, and delinea
disclosures about fair value measurements. Thidagigie applies to a broad range of other existioguating pronouncements that require or
permit fair value measurements. ASC 820 definesvilue as “the price that would be received tbarlasset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participantie measurement date.” Fair value is an exéepand that exit price should reflect all the
assumptions that market participants would useiging the asset or liability.

Our fair value measurements include the considaratf market risks that other market participantghiconsider in pricing the
particular asset or liability, specifically non-fammance risk and counterparty credit risk. Consitlen of the non-performance risk and
counterparty credit risk are used to establishafty@opriate risk-adjusted discount rates used ifauvalue measurements.

The following section describes the valuation mdtiogy used to measure our financial assets ahflities that were accounted for at
fair value.
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CENTURY ALUMINUM COMPANY

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - gnued
(Unaudited)

Overview of Century’s valuation methodology
Level Significant inputs

Cash equivalents

1 Quoted market prices

Trust assets (1) 1 Quoted market prices

Surety bonds 1 Quoted market prices

Primary aluminum put option contracts 5 Quoted London Metal Exchange (“LME”") forward marleices, historical
volatility measurements and risk-adjusted discoatés

Natural gas forward financial contracts 2 Quoted natural gas forward market prices for prireauminum and risk-adjusted
discount rates

Ravenswood power contract 3 Quoted LME forward market prices, power tariff @$¢ management’s estimate of
future power usage and risk-adjusted discount rates

E.ON U.S. (“E.ON”) contingent obligatiol 3 Quoted LME forward market prices for primary aluomm, management’s estimates
of the LME forward market prices for primary alumm for periods beyond the
guoted periods and management’s estimate of flgwet of operations at Century
Aluminum of Kentucky, our wholly owned subsidia®CAKY")

Primary aluminum sales premium contracts 3 Management’s estimates of future U.S. Midwest puemand risk-adjusted discount

rates

(1) Trust assets are currently invested in monagket funds. The trust has sole authority to intlestfunds in secure interest producing
investments consisting of short-term securitiesadsor guaranteed by the United States governmieratsh and cash equivalents.

Fair value measurements

The following table sets forth by level within tA&C 820 fair value hierarchy our financial assetd Babilities that are accounted for at
fair value on a recurring basis. As required by ARD, financial assets and liabilities are clasdifin their entirety based on the lowest level
of input that is significant to the fair value meemment. Our assessment of the significance oft&cpkar input to the fair value measurement
requires judgment, and may affect the valuatiofamfvalue assets and liabilities and the placemethtin the fair value hierarchy levels.

Recurring Fair Value Measurements As of June 30, 2012
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

ASSETS:

Cash equivalents $ 145,49. $ — $ — $ 145,49:

Trust assets 15,16( — — 15,16(

Surety bond — workers comp insurance 2,391 — — 2,391
TOTAL $ 163,04 $ — $ — 3 163,04:
LIABILITIES:

Natural gas forward financial contracts $ — $ 65 $ — $ 65

E.ON contingent obligation — net — — 14,66: 14,66

Primary aluminum sales contract — — 1,361 1,361
TOTAL $ — $ 65 $ 16,02¢ $ 16,08¢
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CENTURY ALUMINUM COMPANY

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - sbnued

(Unaudited)
Recurring Fair Value Measurements As of December 31, 2011
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

ASSETS:

Cash equivalents $ 176,28: $ — $ — $ 176,28:

Trust assets 15,88¢ — — 15,88¢

Surety bonds — workers comp insurance 2,391 — — 2,391

Primary aluminum put option contracts — 9,331 — 9,331

Power contract — — 10€ 10€
TOTAL $ 194,56: $ 9,331 $ 10€ $ 204,00:
LIABILITIES:

Natural gas forward financial contracts $ — $ 281 $ — $ 281

E.ON contingent obligation — net — — 13,95¢ 13,95¢

Primary aluminum sales contract — premium collar — — 90¢ 90¢
TOTAL $ — $ 281 $ 14,86¢ $ 15,147

Change in Level 3 Fair Value Measurements during tb three months ended June 30,
Derivative liabilities - net

2012 2011
Beginning balance, April 1, $ (15,42¢) $ (14,31
Total gain (realized/unrealized) included in eagsin (545) (758
Settlements (53 53:
Ending balance, June 30, $ (16,029 $ (14,53¢)
Amount of total loss included in earnings attrithléato the change in unrealized losses (gainsjimgla
to assets and liabilities held at June 30, $ (54%) $ (758

Change in Level 3 Fair Value Measurements during t@ six months ended June 30,
Derivative liabilities - net

2012 2011
Beginning balance, January 1, $ (14,760 $ (13,807
Total gain (realized/unrealized) included in eagsin (1,159 (1,237
Settlements (10€) 497
Ending balance, June 30, $ (16,029 $ (14,53¢)
Amount of total loss included in earnings attritiléato the change in unrealized losses (gainsjimgla
to assets and liabilities held at June 30, (1,159 $ (1,23))

The net gain (loss) on our derivative assets afidlilies is recorded in our statement of operationder net gain (loss) on forward
contracts. Seblote 4 Derivative and hedging instrumefusthe location of our Level 3 derivative assetd &abilities within our consolidate
balance sheets.




Table of Contents

CENTURY ALUMINUM COMPANY

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - sbnued
(Unaudited)

4. Derivative and hedging instrument:

The following table provides the fair value andarade sheet classification of our derivatives:

Fair Value of Derivative Assets and Liabilities
December 31,

Balance sheet location June 30, 2012 2011

DERIVATIVE ASSETS:

Primary aluminum put option contracts Due froniliaties $ — $ 5,43¢

Primary aluminum put option contracts Prepaid and other current assets — 3,892

Power contract Prepaid and other current assets — 10€
TOTAL $ — $ 9,431
DERIVATIVE LIABILITIES:

E.ON contingent obligation Other liabilities $ 14,66 $ 13,95¢

Aluminum sales premium contracts — current portion Accrued and other current liabilities 1,04¢ 607

Natural gas forward financial contracts Accrued and other current liabilities 65 281

Aluminum sales premium contracts — less currentiqror Other liabilities 313 301
TOTAL $ 16,08¢ $ 15,147

Natural gas forward financial contracts

To mitigate the volatility of our natural gas cdsie to the natural gas markets, we have enteredixatd-price forward financial contrac
which settle in cash in the period correspondinthéintended usage of natural gas. These forwanttacts are designated as cash flow
hedges and qualify for hedge accounting under ASE 8

The natural gas forward financial contracts arévadéres that qualified for cash flow hedge treatm®uring the three and six months
ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 , the changes ircoumalated other comprehensive loss resulting freatized and unrealized gains and
losses on these derivatives were not significanutdfinancial statements. There were no lossesgrézed for ineffective portions of these
derivatives during the periods.

Foreign currency forward contracts

We manage our foreign currency exposure by entenitogforeign currency forward contracts when mamagnt deems such transactions
appropriate. As of June 30, 2012 and December(Bill 2we had no foreign currency forward contracistanding. We are exposed to
foreign currency risk due to fluctuations in théueaof the U.S. dollar as compared to the eurojdbkandic krona (“ISK”) and the Chinese
yuan. The labor costs, maintenance costs and lottedrservices at our facility in Grundartangi, lboed (“Grundartangi”) are denominated in
ISK and a portion of its anode costs are denomihiateuros and Chinese yuan. Labor costs, maintenemsts and other local services at
Century Anodes are denominated in euros. As atresuincrease or decrease in the value of thosermties relative to the U.S. dollar would
affect Grundartangi’'s and Century Anodes's opegatiargins.

We have realized gains and losses for our foreigreacy cash flow hedges for the Grundartangi esipanand Helguvik project capital
expenditures that was recognized in accumulategr atbmprehensive loss and is reclassified to egsrais part of the depreciation expense of
the capital assets (for the Helguvik project th@nd occur when Helguvik is put into service).

10
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CENTURY ALUMINUM COMPANY
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - gnued
(Unaudited)

Ravenswood power contract

We are party to a power supply agreement at otulitfaion Ravenswood, West Virginia (“Ravenswoodtat contains LME-based pricing
provisions (the "special rate mechanism") thateerembedded derivative. The embedded derivative doequalify for cash flow hedge
treatment and is marked to market quarterly.

In June 2011, the Public Service Commission ofState of West Virginia (the “PSC") extended thecsplerate mechanism for one year.
The current special rate mechanism will remainlate until the PSC issues an order on the recélgtyspecial rate proposal which is
expected to occur in September 2012. We cannot¢tiaie if the special pricing provisions will beterded in the future. As of June 30, 2(
based on our estimated future power usage undept®al rate mechanism, the embedded derivativabdair value.

Primary aluminum put option contracts

As of June 30, 2012, we had no primary aluminumgmtion contracts outstanding. We had previoustgreal into primary aluminum g
option contracts that settled monthly based on LviEes through June 2012. These options were psechi partially mitigate the risk of a
future decline in aluminum prices.

Our counterparties included two neglated third parties and Glencore, a related péiviy paid cash premiums to enter into the put o}
contracts and recorded an asset on the consolilatadce sheets. We determined the fair valueeopth option contracts using a Black-
Scholes model with market data provided by an ieddpnt vendor and accounted for the contractsrasatlee financial instruments with
gains and losses in the fair value of the contrnaaterded on the consolidated statements of opesaih net gain (loss) on forward contracts.

Aluminum sales premium contracts

The Glencore Metal Agreement is a physical delivamtract for 20,400 metric tons per year (“mtpef)primary aluminum through
December 31, 2013 with variable, LME-based pricldgder the Glencore Metal Agreement, pricing isgloiasn market prices, adjusted by a
negotiated U.S. Midwest premium with a cap andarfhs applied to the current U.S. Midwest premiWe. account for the Glencore Metal
Agreement as a derivative instrument under ASC &Ebns and losses on the derivative are basedeodiffierence between the contracted
U.S. Midwest premium and actual and forecasted MiBwest premiums. Settlements are recorded ingdlparty sales. Unrealized gains
(losses) based on forecasted U.S. Midwest premarmgecorded in net gain (loss) on forward con¢ractthe consolidated statements of
operations.

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments:
Gain (loss) recognized in income from derivatives
Three months ended  Six months ended June

June 30, 30,
Location 2012 2011 2012 2011
Primary aluminum put option
contracts Net gain (loss) on forward contracts $ 197( $ (1,060%$ (2,729 $  (5,66¢€)
Aluminum sales premium contractRelated party sales 32¢ 162 532 25€
Aluminum sales premium contracts Net gain (logsjaward contracts (520 (66¢) (98%) (86€)

11
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CENTURY ALUMINUM COMPANY
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - gnued
(Unaudited)

We had the following outstanding forward contrabtst were entered into that were not designatdobdging instruments:

December 31,

June 30, 2012 2011
Power contracts (in megawatt hours (“MWH")) (1) — 3,77
Primary aluminum sales contract premium (metricjd@) 30,60( 40,87(
Primary aluminum put option contracts (metric tons) — 15,00(
Primary aluminum put option contracts (metric tonsglated party — 18,00(

(1) Represents our expected usage during the mémyatierm of the Ravenswood power contract. In RO1L, the West Virginia PSC
extended the term of this contract for an additigear.

(2) Represents the remaining physical deliveries unde2013 Glencore Metal Agreeme

Counterparty credit risk. We only enter into forward financial contracts withunterparties we determine to be creditworthpatime of
entering into the contract. If any counterpartyefdito perform according to the terms of the cantfrine impact would be limited to the
difference between the contract price and the nigmkee applied to the contract volume on the dditeettlement.

As of June 30, 2012 , income of $65 is expectduktoeclassified out of accumulated other comprahengss into earnings over the next

12-month period for derivative instruments thatdnbeen designated and have qualified as cash folgihg instruments and for the related
hedged transactions.

12
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CENTURY ALUMINUM COMPANY
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - gnued
(Unaudited)

5. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share (“EPS”) amounts are cledilby dividing earnings available to common dhalders by the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding. Diluted EP&uats assume the issuance of common stock footdhgally dilutive common shares
outstanding. The following table shows the basit dituted earnings per share for three and six hmanded June 30, 2012 and 2011 :

For the three months ended June 30,

2012 2011
Income Shares (000) Per-Share Income Shares (000) Per-Share
Net income (loss) $ (22,277 $ 23,98¢
Amount allocated to common shareholders 10C% 91.97%
Basic EPS:
Income (loss) allocable to common
shareholders (12,277 88,45. $ (0.19 22,06: 93,10 $ 0.24
Effect of Dilutive Securities:
Stock compensation plans — — — 462
Diluted EPS:
Income (loss) applicable to common
shareholders with assumed conversion $ (12,279 88,45, $ (0.19 $ 22,06: 93,567 $ 0.24
Six months ended June 30,
2012 2011
Income Shares (000) Per-Share Income Shares (000) Per-Share
Net income (loss) $ (16,67¢) $ 49,03:
Amount allocated to common shareholders 10C% 91.91%
Basic EPS:
Income (loss) allocable to common
shareholders (16,679 88,58¢ $ (0.19) 45,06¢ 93,03t $ 0.4¢
Effect of Dilutive Securities:
Stock compensation plans — — — 39¢
Diluted EPS:
Income (loss) applicable to common
shareholders with assumed conversion $ (16,679 88,58¢ $ (0.19 $ 45,06¢ 03,43. $ 0.4€

13
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CENTURY ALUMINUM COMPANY
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - gnued
(Unaudited)

Impact of our outstanding Series A Convertible Preferred Stock on EPS

Our Series A Convertible Preferred Stock has singitearacteristics of a “participating security”described by ASC 260-10-45
“Participating Securities and the Two-Class Methdd"accordance with the guidance in the ASC 26@H.0we calculate basic EPS using
Two-Class Method, allocating undistributed incom®tr preferred shareholder consistent with itsigipation rights, and diluted EPS using
the If-Converted Method, when applicable.

The generally accepted accounting principles fporéng EPS do not require the presentation ofdoaisd diluted EPS for securities ot
than common stock and the EPS amounts, as presentggertain to our common stock.

The Two<Class Method is an earnings allocation formula tleérmines earnings per share for common shatepaticipating securitie
according to dividends declared (or accumulated)tha participation rights in undistributed earrsing

The holders of our convertible preferred stock dohave a contractual obligation to share in tlesds of Century. Thus, in periods wt
we report net losses, we will not allocate thelosses to the convertible preferred stock for hrputation of basic or diluted EPS.

Calculation of EPS:

Three months ended June

30, Six months ended June 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011
Options to purchase common stock outstanding 626,33: 641,18 626,33: 641,18
Weighted average service-based stock awards odistan 395,79 343,14¢ 370,65¢ 280,36¢
Excluded from the calculation of diluted EPS:
Stock options (1) 626,33: 349,00( 632,33: 349,00(
Service-based share award 395,79: — 370,65¢ —

(1) These stock option awards were excluded floencalculation of diluted EPS because the exepise of these options was greater
than the average market price of the underlyingmomstock, except in periods when we had a netib&se all option were
excluded because of their antidilutive effect omewys per share.

During the six months ended June 30, 2012 , werchjased 400,000 shares of our common stock unsteick repurchase program. (See
Note 6 Shareholde’ Equity for additional information about this program) Stsmrepurchased under the program are excludedtfrem
calculation of weighted average shares of commackstutstanding.

Servicebased stock for which vesting is based upon coetirservice is not considered issued and outstarsffiages of common stc
until vested and issued. However, the serbiased stock is considered a common stock equivaledit therefore, the weighted aver
servicebased stock is included, using the treasury stoethad, in common shares outstanding for dilutediegs per share computation
they have a dilutive effect on earnings per share.
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6. Shareholders’equity

Common Stock

Under our Restated Certificate of Incorporationaagended, our Board of Directors is authorizesg$oé up to 195,000,000 shares of our

common stock.

The rights, preferences and privileges of holdéimuo common stock are subject to, and may be ad@eaffected by, the rights of the
holders of shares of any series of our preferrecksivhich are currently outstanding, including Qaries A Convertible Preferred Stock, or
any series which we may designate and issue ifuthee.

Common and Preferred Stock Activity: Preferred stock Common stock

Series A convertible Treasury Outstanding
Beginning balance as of December 31, 2011 80,71¢ 4,386,52. 88,844,32
Repurchase of common stock — 400,00( (400,000
Conversion of convertible preferred stock (95) — 9,48¢
Issuance for stock compensation plans — — 13,23«
Ending balance as of June 30, 2012 80,62t 4,786,52. 88,467,04

Stock Repurchase Program

In August 2011 , our Board of Directors approve®b8,000 stock repurchase program. Under the pragsenmay repurchase up to
$60,000 in value of our outstanding shares of comstock from time to time on the open market availeng market prices, in block trades
or otherwise. The timing and amount of any shagpsirchased will be determined by our managemetbas its evaluation of market
conditions, the trading price of the stock and pfaetors. The repurchase program may be suspedgidcontinued at any time.

Shares of common stock repurchased are recordexsiaais treasury stock and result in a reductighafeholders’ equity in the
consolidated balance sheets. From time to timastng shares may be reissued as contributionsrteroployee benefit plans and for the
conversion of convertible preferred stock. Wherrebare reissued, we use an average cost methddtBamining cost. The difference
between the cost of the shares and the reissuaicecipadded to or deducted from additional paidapital.

From August 11, 2011 through June 30, 2012 , wartdyased 4,786,521 shares of common stock for gregate purchase price of
$49,924 . We had approximately $10,076 remainindeuthe repurchase program authorization as of 30n2012 .

Series A Convertible Preferred Stock conversions

All shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Starkheld by Glencore. The issuance of common stodkr our stock incentive
programs, debt exchange transactions and any effaring that excludes Glencore participation tegganti-dilution provisions of the

preferred stock agreement and results in the autor@nversion of Series A Convertible PreferredcBtshares into shares of common stock.

See Common and Preferred Stock Activity table aliovadditional information about preferred stodneersions during the period.
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7. Income taxe:

The components of our unrecognized tax positioasarfollows:

December 31,

June 30, 2012 2011
Highly certain tax positions $ 15,70C $ 15,10(
Other unrecognized tax benefits 90C 80C
Gross unrecognized tax benefits $ 16,60( $ 15,90(
Accrued interest and penalties related to unreeeghiax benefits $ 15C $ 10C

We recognize interest and penalties accrued retatadrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense
We do not expect a significant change in the baafanrecognized tax benefits within the next tgahonths.

Our federal income tax returns beginning in 20@8subject to examination. Our 2008 tax year isenily under audit by the Internal
Revenue Service (“IRS”). Additionally, a 2005 ameddeturn is also under audit with respect to chagk items. Our state returns beginning
in 2005 are subject to examination. Our Icelandicreturns are subject to examination beginning wie 2005 tax year.

For the years 2011, 2010 and 2009, we did not &emermanently reinvest foreign earnings . In Ma2612, we removed our election to
permanently reinvest foreign earnings prior to 2009

8. Inventories

Inventories consist of the following:

December 31,

June 30, 2012 2011
Raw materials $ 33,31: $ 41,14:
Work-in-process 14,757 15,54¢
Finished goods 10,63 10,53¢
Operating and other supplies 99,83¢ 104,73t
Inventories $ 158,53¢ $ 171,96:

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or mtanksing the first-in, first-out method (“FIFQO”).
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9. Debt

December 31,
June 30, 2012 2011

Debt classified as current liabilities:

Hancock County industrial revenue bonds due 20#8rést payable quarterly (variable interest rates
(not to exceed 12%))(1) $ 7,815 $ 7,81¢

Debt classified as non-current liabilities:
8.0% senior secured notes payable due May 15, 2@t4f debt discount of $2,171 and $2,695,

respectively, interest payable semiannually 247,43: 246,90¢
7.5% senior unsecured notes payable due Augu&01%, interest payable semiannually 2,60z 2,60z
E.ON contingent obligation, principal and accrueigiest, contingently payable monthly, annual
interest rate of 10.94% (2) 14,66 13,95¢
TOTAL $ 272,51: $ 271,28!

(1) The IRBs are classified as current liabilitiescause they are remarketed weekly and coulddagreel to be repaid upon demand if
there is a failed remarketing. The IRB interes¢ @t June 30, 2012 was 0.43% .

(2) E.ON contingent obligation principal and irgst payments are payable based on CAKY'’s operdtirad and the LME price for
primary aluminum. See E.ON contingent obligatiotote

Revolving credit facility

On July 1, 2010, we and certain of our direct ilirect domestic subsidiaries (together with Centthe "Borrowers") entered into a
four -year $100,000 senior secured revolving criadillity pursuant to a Loan and Security Agreemeated as of July 1, 2010 , among the
Borrowers and Wells Fargo Capital Finance, LLCleasler and agent (the "Credit Facility"), a portafrwhich was later syndicated to Credit
Suisse AG. The Credit Facility will expire on Jdly2014.

Status of our revolving credit facility:

June 30, 2012

Senior secured revolving credit facility amount $ 100,00(
Borrowing availability, net of outstanding letterkcredit 57,98:
Outstanding borrowings on revolving credit facility —
Letter of credit sub-facility amount 50,00(
Outstanding letters of credit issued under the Ixéwg credit facility 42,01¢

The availability of funds under the revolving criefdicility is limited by a specified borrowing basensisting of accounts receivable and
inventory which meet the eligibility criteria.

Our obligations under the Credit Facility are guaead by certain of our domestic subsidiaries audied by a first priority security
interest in all of the domestic accounts receivableentory and certain bank accounts. The guaearftar any and all obligations under the
Credit Facility are on a joint and several basis.

Any amounts outstanding under the Credit Facilily bear interest, at our option, at LIBOR or a &aate, plus, in each case, an
applicable interest margin. In addition, we paypmmitment fee on undrawn amounts, less the amdumirdetters of credit exposure. For
standby letters of credit, we are required to p&seaon the face amount of such letters of credit.
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E.ON contingent obligation

The E.ON contingent obligation consists of the aggte E.ON payments made on CAKY’s behalf undeaveep purchase agreement
with Big Rivers and E.ON (the “Big Rivers Agreem®rnh excess of the agreed upon base amount. kttacerues at an annual rate equal to
10.94% . The term of the agreement is through Déeerdl, 2028 . Our obligation to make repayment®igingent upon certain operating
criteria for Hawesville and the LME price of prilgaaluminum. Based on the LME forward market andeyrectation of Hawesville’future
operations, we classified the E.ON contingent atian within noncurrent liabilities, which includascrued interest on the obligation. When
the conditions for repayment are met, and for sg las those conditions continue to be met, webeilbbligated to make principal and inte
payments.

10. Commitments and contingencie
Environmental Contingencies

Based upon all available information, we believe @urrent environmental liabilities do not havegame not likely to have, a material
adverse effect on our financial condition, resaofteperations or liquidity. Because of the issued ancertainties described below and the
inability to predict the requirements of future @ommental laws, there can be no assurance thatefeapital expenditures and costs for
environmental compliance at currently or formenyned or operated properties will not result iniliies which may have a material adve
effect.

It is our policy to accrue for costs associatedweitvironmental assessments and remedial efforesitbecomes probable that a liabi
has been incurred and the costs can be reasorsibohated. The aggregate environmental-related eddiabilities were $1,014 and $852 at
June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 , respectikblgiccrued amounts have been recorded withoungieffect to any possible future
recoveries. With respect to costs for ongoing emvitental compliance, including maintenance and todng, such costs are expensed as
incurred.

Century Aluminum of West Virginia, Inc. (“CAWV") aatinues to perform remedial measures at Ravenswomliant to an order issued
by the EPA in 1994 (the “3008(h) Order”). CAWV alsonducted a RCRA facility investigation (“RFI"hder the 3008(h) Order evaluating
other areas at Ravenswood that may have contaminagquiring remediation. The RFI has been apprdyeappropriate agencies. CAWV
has completed interim remediation measures at itws glentified in the RFI, and we believe no ferthemediation will be required. A
Corrective Measures Study, which formally documeéimésconclusion of these activities, has been stibdhby the EPS for a final order.

Prior to our purchase of Hawesville, the EPA issadithal Record of Decision (“ROD”) under the Corpensive Environmental
Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 198DHRCLA”). By agreement, Southwire Company (“Souttef), the former owner and
operator is to perform all obligations under theBRAQCAKY has agreed to operate and maintain themglavater treatment system required
under the ROD on behalf of Southwire, and Southwiibreimburse CAKY for any expense that exceed6®annually.

In July 2006, we were named as a defendant, togefitie certain affiliates of Alcan Inc., in a lawisbrought by Alcoa Inc. seeking to
determine responsibility for certain environmermaemnity obligations related to the sale of a ehstinum plate manufacturing facility
located in Vernon, California, which we purchasemif Alcoa Inc. in December 1998, and sold to Alearled ProductfRavenswood LLC i
July 1999. The complaint also seeks costs andnatydiees. The matter is in a preliminary stage,wadannot predict the ultimate outcome
of this action or estimate a range of possibledssslated to this matter at this time. We do mpeet that the ultimate costs to resolve this
action will have a material adverse effect on @oarficial condition, results of operations or ligtydregardless of the final outcome.
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Matters relating to the St. Croix Alumina Refining Facility

We are a party to an EPA Administrative Order omg&amt (the “Order”) pursuant to which other past present owners of an alumina
refining facility at St. Croix, Virgin Islands (tH&t. Croix Alumina Refinery”) have agreed to caoyt a Hydrocarbon Recovery Plan to
remove and manage hydrocarbons floating on grouredwaderlying the facility. Pursuant to the Hyclidbon Recovery Plan, recovered
hydrocarbons and groundwater are delivered todfecant petroleum refinery where they are receareti managed. In connection with the
sale of the facility by Lockheed Martin Corporati¢hockheed”), to one of our affiliates, Virgin Ehds Alumina Corporation (*Vialco”), in
1989, Lockheed, Vialco and Century entered intoLihekheed-Vialco Asset Purchase Agreement. Thenmmity provisions contained in the
Lockheed-Vialco Asset Purchase Agreement alloegpansibility for certain environmental mattersckioeed has tendered indemnity and
defense of the above matter to Vialco. We havenlige tendered indemnity to Lockheed. Through Juhe€812, we have expended
approximately $940 on the Hydrocarbon Recovery PlAte expect the future potential payments undsritidemnification to comply with
the Order will be approximately $500 , which maydfiset in part by sales of recoverable hydrocasbon

In May 2005, we and Vialco were among several didats listed in a lawsuit filed by the Commissioakthe Department of Planning
and Natural Resources (“DPNR?”), in his capacityl asstee for Natural Resources of the United Stdiagin Islands. The complaint alleges
damages to natural resources caused by allegebeslérom the St. Croix Alumina Refinery and thmeeht petroleum refinery. The prim:
cause of action is pursuant to the natural resadaogage provisions of CERCLA, but various ancill@gyritorial law causes of action were
included as well. We and Lockheed have each teddedemnity and defense of the case to the otlnsupnt to the terms of the Lockheed-
Vialco Asset Purchase Agreement. The complairkssaaspecified monetary damages, costs and attéersyIn November 2011, the court
granted a motion by Century, dismissing Centuryftbe case. Vialco, however, remains a defendathisrcase and has asserted factual and
affirmative defenses. The parties are currentlyaged in the discovery process. As of June 30, 20b2rial date has been set for the
remaining claims.

In December 2006, Vialco and the two succeedingeps/nf the St. Croix Alumina Refinery were namediefendants in a lawsuit filed
by the Commissioner of the DPNR. The complaintgatethe defendants failed to take certain actipasiied in a Coastal Zone managen
permit issued to Vialco in October 1994, and altegelations of territorial water pollution contri@iws during the various defendanp€riods
of ownership. The complaint seeks statutory anératinspecified monetary penalties for the allegethtions. The parties are currently
engaged in the discovery process.

In May 2009, St. Croix Renaissance Group, L.L.I(*BCRG") filed a third-party complaint for contriban and other relief against
several third-party defendants, including Vialagating to a lawsuit filed against SCRG seekingvecy of response costs relating to the
aforementioned DPNR CERCLA matter. In February 2@44 court granted a motion by Century, dismis€iegtury from the case. Vialco,
however, remains a defendant in this case. In Maeédi, the court granted the remaining defendaimtstiding Vialco’s, motion for
summary judgment, dismissing the case. The pléfiléHl a notice of appeal with the Third Circuib@t of Appeals in May 2011. A date has
not been set for the appeal.

In December 2010 , Century was among several dafgsdisted in a lawsuit filed by approximately @3plaintiffs who either worked,
resided or owned property in the area downwind fthenSt. Croix Alumina Refinery. In March 2011, @ay was also named a defendant in
a nearly identical suit brought by approximately 20aintiffs previously named in the aforementiosed. The plaintiffs in both suits allege
damages caused by the presence of red mud andpatftieulates coming from the alumina facility. Tpiaintiffs in both suits seek
unspecified monetary damages, costs and attoresyafewell as certain injunctive relief. We havelezed indemnity and defense to St. C
Alumina LLC and Alcoa Alumina & Chemical LLC undtre terms of an acquisition agreement relatingpéofacility and have filed a motion
to dismiss plaintiffs’ claims, but the court hag get ruled on the motion.
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Pursuant to the terms of the asset purchase agnééeigveen Vialco and the purchaser of the St.Catimina Refinery in 1995, the
purchaser assumed responsibility for all costsathdr liabilities associated with the bauxite watigposal facilities, including pre-closure
and postelosure liabilities. At this time, it is not prédble to predict the ultimate outcome of or tareate a range of possible losses rela
to any of the foregoing actions.

Legal Contingencies

We have pending against us or may be subject touatawsuits, claims and proceedings related piiyng employment, commercial,
environmental, shareholder, safety and health msatédthough it is not presently possible to det@erthe outcome of these matters,
management believes their ultimate disposition moli have a material adverse effect on our findrciadition, results of operations, or
liquidity.

In evaluating whether to accrue for costs assatiaith legal contingencies, it is our policy to ¢aikto consideration factors such as the
facts and circumstances asserted, our historigaréence with contingencies of a similar nature,ltkelihood of our prevailing and the
severity of any potential loss. For some mattessaccrual is established because we have assassask of loss to be remote. Where the
risk of loss is probable and the costs can be reddy estimated, we record an accrual, either oin@imidual basis or with respect to a group
of matters involving similar claims, based on taetdrs set forth above.

We also determine estimates of reasonably podsibdes or ranges of reasonably possible losseg@ss of related accrued liabilities, if
any, when we have assessed that a loss is reagguasible. Based on current knowledge, managehanascertained estimates for losses
that are reasonably possible and management doeslieve that any reasonably possible outcomesdess of our accruals, if any, woulc
material to our financial condition, results of ogi#ons, or liquidity. We reevaluate and update assessments and accruals as matters
progress over time.

We have been named as a defendant in a lawsuittfjleour former Chief Executive Officer, Logan Kargalleging breach of contract
and wrongful termination in violation of public poy. The lawsuit alleges that Century anticipdyobreached the employment and sever:
protection agreements between Century and Mr. Kragd that Century is obligated to make variougsmwce payments in excess of
$20,000 to Mr. Kruger under such agreements. titiad, the complaint seeks unspecified damagefjding exemplary and punitive
damages, for wrongful termination, as well as casts attorneys’ fees. The trial court has tramstethe matter to an arbitration panel for
resolution. We believe these claims are withoutina@d intend to vigorously defend ourself agatheim. The matter is in a preliminary
stage, and we cannot predict the ultimate outcdnti@i®action or estimate a range of possible Ipsstated to this matter at this time. We do
not expect that the ultimate costs to resolvedhtn will have a material adverse effect on auaricial condition, results of operations or
liquidity, regardless of the final outcome.

In March 2011, the purported stockholder classastpending against us consolidatedina®: Century Aluminum Company Securities
Litigation were dismissed with prejudice by the United Statis¢rict Court for the Northern District of Califioia. The plaintiffs in the class
actions allege that we improperly accounted fohdbmsvs associated with the termination of certfairward financial sales contracts which
accounting allegedly resulted in artificial inflai of our stock price and investor losses. Pldmtfe seeking rescission of our February 2009
common stock offering, unspecified compensatoryatges, including interest thereon, costs and exgears@ attorneys’ fees. On March 10,
2011, plaintiffs filed a notice of appeal to theler and judgment entered by the court on Marcl®312The notice of appeal remains pending
before the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Ninth @itc
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Ravenswood Retiree Medical Benefits changes

Century Aluminum of West Virginia, Inc. (“CAWV") aanded its postretirement medical benefit plan,céiffe January 1, 2010, for all
current and former CAWYV salaried employees, thepehdents and all bargaining unit employees whiedsbefore June 1, 2006, and their
dependents. Effective January 1, 2011, CAWYV no éoqmyovided retiree medical benefits to active sateCAWYV personnel or any other
personnel who retired prior to November 1, 2010.

The principal changes to the plan as a resultisfatnendment were that, upon attainment of agea3CAWYV provided retiree medical
benefits ceased for retirees and dependents. itiaddargaining unit retirees under age 65 analifjad dependents under age 65 were
covered by the salary retiree medical plan whicjuited out-of pocket payments for premiums, co-pays deductibles by participants.

In November 2009, CAWYV filed a class action compidor declaratory judgment against the USWA, tf&A\A'’s local union, and four
CAWV retirees, individually and as class represeévea, seeking a declaration of CAWV's rights todifg/terminate retiree medical benefits
as described above. Later in November 2009, thH& N&nd representatives of a retiree class filedpagate suit against CAWV, Century
Aluminum Company, Century Aluminum Master Welfarerifit Plan, and various John Does with respettiddoregoing. These actions,
entitled Dewhurst, et al. v. Century Aluminum GCet.al., and Century Aluminum of West Virginia, Inc.United Steel, Paper and Forestry,
Rubber Manufacturing, Energy, Allied Industrial &8ice Workers International Union, AFL-CIO/CLC,at, have been consolidated and
venue has been set in the District Court for thetlsern District of West Virginia.

In January 2010, the USWA filed a motion for pretiary injunction to prevent us from implementing fioregoing changes while these
lawsuits are pending, which was dismissed by tlaédourt. In August 2011, the Fourth Circuit CoaftAppeals upheld the District Court’s
dismissal of the USWA’s motion for preliminary imiction, finding that the USWA had failed to establihe likelihood of success on the
merits of the underlying matter. In October 201AVZV filed a motion to dismiss plaintiff's first ammeled complaint with the trial court. No
ruling has yet been made on the motion. In Marct22€he court granted a stay pending negotiatiomsdtart Ravenswood. The plaintiffs
have agreed in principle to settle the lawsuit up@uccessful restart of Ravenswood, see “CAWVr&=WEBA contributions” below.

In June 2011, the Pension Benefit Guaranty Cormrdthe “PBGC”) informed us that it believed tlatcessation of operations” under
the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 10ERISA”) had occurred at our Ravenswood faciliy a result of the curtailment of
operations at the facility and requested that wgaga in discussions with the PBGC relating theite.have notified the PBGC that we do
not believe that a “cessation of operations” hasioed and have entered into ongoing discussiotisthve PBGC to resolve the matter. If a
“cessation of operations$ ultimately determined to have occurred under&Rlit may be necessary for Century Aluminum of YWésginia
to accelerate the timing of approximately $17,408antributions over a period of years to certdiisodefined pension plans or post other
collateral with the PBGC or negotiate an alterrmigreement.

Power Commitments
Hawesville

The Big Rivers Agreement has a term through Dece@®23, unless extended. The Big Rivers Agreenseaittostbased agreement
provides sufficient power for Hawesville’s full gtoction capacity requirements. The Big Rivers A&gnent is take-or-pay for Hawesville's
energy requirements at full production.
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Mt. Holly

Mt. Holly has a power purchase agreement (the &a@boper Agreement”) with the South Carolina RuBrvice Authority (“Santee
Cooper”) with a term through December 2015, unéedended. The Santee Cooper Agreement providepiatiepower for Mt. Holly’s full
production capacity requirements at prices fixegklaon published rate schedules (which are sutgettange), with adjustments for fuel
prices and other items. The Santee Cooper Agreerastnicts Mt. Holly’s ability to reduce its poweonsumption (or the associated payment
obligations) below contracted levels and to terr@nthe agreement, unless, in each case, the LNtEllow certain negotiated levels.

In April 2012, Santee Cooper adopted a revisedaitable Supplemental Power Rate Schedule effedive 1, 2012 and Mt. Holly and
Santee Cooper have subsequently amended the téitistdolly's power agreement to take advantagthefnew rate schedule. The revision
allows Santee Cooper and Mt. Holly to agree toesaitior a portion of Mt. Holly's Supplemental Powequirements from a designated
resource. The energy charge for Supplemental Pivarerthe designated resource is based on thectigt$ of the resource rather than Santee
Cooper's system average fuel costs. The amendnhoetits power agreement may provide a benefit toHtly provided that the energy co
of the designated resource are below Santee Cemystem average fuel costs.

Ravenswood

CAWV has a power purchase agreement (the “ApCo égent”) with the Appalachian Power Company (“ApCoQAWYV currently
purchases a limited amount of power under the AQ@@ement as necessary to maintain its Ravenswoettexr, which is presently
curtailed. Power is supplied under the ApCo Agreenat prices set forth in published tariffs (whatle subject to change), with certain
adjustments. Under the special rate contract, Raveod may be excused from, or may defer the payofeany increase in the tariff rate if
LME prices fall below certain negotiated level¥he current special rate mechanism will remainlace until the PSC issues an order on the
recently filed new special rate proposal for an LiliSed rate, which is expected to occur in Septe@mE?.

Grundartangi

Nordural Grundartangi ehf has power purchase aggatswith HS Orka hf (“HS”), Landsvirkjun and Orlaita Reykjavikur (“OR”) to
provide power to its Grundartangi smelter. Them&qr purchase agreements, which will expire onotaridates from 2019 through 2036,
provide power at LME-based variable rates. Eackhgugurchase agreement contains take-or-pay oladiggatvith respect to a significant
percentage of the total committed and availablegraymmder such agreement.

In the fourth quarter of 2011, an additional 47.%/Nf power became available under a power purcagsgement with OR. This power
can be used at either Grundartangi or Helguvikiamairrently being utilized at Grundartangi. In erdo use this additional power, Nordural
Grundartangi has temporarily reduced its power Ipases under each of its outstanding power puradgreements, but continues to consume
power in excess of its take-or-pay obligation. 8 ®R have disputed Nordural Grundartangi's righthaike such reductions and have
commenced arbitration proceedings against Nordeirahdartangi that are currently expected to oacuhe first quarter of 2013.

In June 2012, Nordural Grundartangi entered inte\a supplemental power contract with Landsvirkjline supplemental power
contract, which will expire in October 2029 (or mpthe occurrence of certain earlier events), witvide Nordural Grundartangi with
supplemental power, as Nordural Grundartangi mgyest from time to time, at LME-based variable saiordural Grundartangi has agreed
to make certain prepayments to Landsvirkjun in eation with the contract, which will reduce thegeripaid for power at the time of
consumption.
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Helguvik

Nordural Helguvik ehf has power purchase agreemeitfisHS and OR to provide power to the Helguvikjpct. These power purchase
agreements provide power at LME-based variable imtel contain take-or-pay obligations with respeet significant percentage of the total
committed and available power under such agreemdiits first stage of power under the OR power Ipagse agreement (approximately 47.5
MW) became available in the fourth quarter of 2@hd is currently being utilized at Grundartangio d&ther power is currently available
under either power purchase agreement. HS (wstheiet to all phases) and OR (with respect to abkph other than the first phase) have
alleged that certain conditions to the deliverpoiver under the power purchase agreements hayeeaotsatisfied. Nordural Helguvik is in
discussion with both HS and OR with respect to starditions.

Other Commitments and Contingencies
Labor Commitments

Approximately 75% of our U.S. based work forcegpresented by the USWA. CAKY’s Hawesville plant éogpes represented by the
USWA are under a collective bargaining agreemerithvexpires on March 31, 2015 .

In April 2010 , Nordural Grundartangi ehf enteratbia new labor agreement with the five labor usiepresenting approximately 84%
of Grundartangi’s work force. The labor agreemexqires on December 31, 2014 .

CAWV'’s Ravenswood plant employees represented &yJIBWA are under a labor agreement that expirefiugust 31, 2010.
Negotiations for a new labor agreement are ongt

CAWV Retiree VEBA contributions

We have reached an agreement in principle wittCR&/V retirees to make contributions to a voluntargployee beneficiary associat
(“VEBA") trust that would provide certain healthresbenefits to these retirees and their eligibjgetdelents in the event of a restart of our
Ravenswood facility. If this agreement were erténto, our obligations under the agreement, incilgény contributions to the VEBA,
would be contingent upon the occurrence of seatate events that are necessary in order to tab@iRavenswood facility. None of these
events, including the finalization of this agreemeane certain to occur.

Other Commitments

The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act tiredrelated Health Care and Education Reconciliatict were enacted in March
2010. The Health Care Acts extend health care egesto many uninsured individuals and expands egeeto those already insured. The
Health Care Acts contain provisions which could &oipour retiree medical benefits in future periddewever, the extent of that impact, if
any, cannot be determined until regulations arenpifgated under the Health Care Acts and additiontafpretations of the Health Care Acts
become available. We are continuing to assessatemipal impacts that this legislation may haveoanfuture results of operations, cash
flows and financial position related to our heal#lte benefits and other postemployment benefigatbtins. Among other things, the Health
Care Acts will eliminate the tax deductibility ¢fe Medicare Part D subsidy for companies that pgegqualifying prescription drug coverage
to retirees effective for years beginning after &aber 31, 2012 .
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11. Forward delivery contracts and financial instruments

As a producer of primary aluminum, we are exposditttuating raw material and primary aluminumcps. We enter into fixed and
market priced contracts for the sale of primaryrahum and the purchase of raw materials in futnéogls.

Forward Physical Delivery Agreements

Primary Aluminum Sales Contracts

Contract Customer Volume Term Pricing
Glencore Metal Agreement (1) Glencore 20,400 mtpy Through December 31, 2013  Variable, based on U.S.
Midwest market
Glencore Sweep Agreement (2) Glencore Surplusarsi aluminum Through December 31, 2012 Variable, based on U.S.
produced in the United States Midwest market

Glencore Nordural Metal Agreemen  Glencore  Approximately 16,000 metric ton Through December 31, 2012  Variable, based on LME

Southwire Metal Agreement (3) Southwire 240 maillipounds per year (high Through December 31, 2013 Variable, based on U.S.
conductivity molten aluminum) Midwest market

(1) We account for the Glencore Metal Agreemerd dsrivative instrument under ASC 815. Under thenGore Metal Agreement,
pricing is based on then-current Midwest marketqsj adjusted by a negotiated U.S. Midwest premviitina cap and a floor as
applied to the current U.S. Midwest premium.

(2) The Glencore Sweep Agreement is for all metatiuced in the U.S. in 2012, less existing sadgsements and high-purity metal
sales. The term of the contract may be extendedrferyear upon mutual agreement.

(3) The Southwire Metal Agreement contains terminatights in the event of a partial or full curtailnterf the Hawesville facility

Long-term Tolling Contracts

Contract Customer Volume Term Pricing
Billiton Tolling Agreement (1) BHP Billiton 130,000 mtpy Through December 31, 2013 LME-based
Glencore Toll Agreement (1) Glencore 90,000 mtpy Through July 31, 2016 LME-based
Glencore Toll Agreement (1) Glencore 45,000 mtpy Through December 31, 2014 LME-based

(1) Grundartangi’s tolling revenues include a prembased on the European Union (“Elif)port duty for primary aluminur

Apart from the Glencore Metal Agreement, the Gleac®weep Agreement, the Glencore Nordural MetakAgrent and the Southwire
Metal Agreement, we had the following forward deliy contractual commitments:
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Other forward delivery contracts
December 31,
June 30, 2012 2011
(in metric tons)
Other forward delivery contracts — total 40,99( 41,50:
Other forward delivery contracts — Glencore 2,312 3,42z
Other forward delivery contracts — fixed price 19¢ 41

Forward Financial Instruments

We are party to various forward financial and pbgkdelivery contracts, including primary alumingont option contracts, which are
accounted for as derivative instruments. Bete 4 Derivative and hedging instrumefasadditional information about these instruments.

12. Supplemental cash flow informatior

Six months ended June 30,

2012 2011
Cash paid for:
Interest $ 10,10¢ $ 11,14¢
Income/withholding taxes (1) 16,80¢ 27,68¢

(1) We paid withholding taxes in Iceland of $9,48% $26,900 in the six months ended June 30, 20d2011 , respectively. Our tax
payments in Iceland for withholding taxes, estirdaad prepayments of Icelandic income taxes andaasgciated refunds are
denominated in ISK.

13. Asset retirement obligations (“ARQO”)

Our asset retirement obligations consist primasflgosts associated with the disposal of spentipet used in the reduction cells of our
domestic facilities.

The reconciliation of the changes in the assetertent obligations is presented below:

Six months ended June Year ended December

30, 31, 2011
Beginning balance, ARO liability $ 15,17. $ 14,27
Additional ARO liability incurred 582 1,11(C
ARQO liabilities settled (690) (1,315
Accretion expense 584 1,102
Ending balance, ARO liability $ 15,647 $ 15,17:

Certain conditional AROs related to the disposatsof fixed assets at our primary aluminum faesithave not been recorded because
they have an indeterminate settlement date. Thasditconal AROs will be initially recognized in thgeriod in which sufficient information
exists to estimate their fair value.
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14. Components of Accumulated other comprehensive Ic
June 30, 2012 December 31, 2011
Unrealized loss on financial instruments $ (871 ¢ (1,040
Defined benefit plan liabilities (139,149 (142,259
Equity in investee other comprehensive incdme (8,476 (8,47¢)
Other comprehensive loss before income tax effect (148,489 (151,779
Income tax effecf2) 16,42: 17,18
Accumulated other comprehensive loss $ (132,06) $ (134,58%)

(1) The amount includes our equity in the other com@mnsive income of Mt. Holly Aluminum Compal

(2) The allocation of the income tax effect to toenponents of other comprehensive income is asvst|

June 30, 2012 December 31, 2011

Unrealized loss on financial instruments $ (665) $ (682)

Defined benefit plan liabilities 16,56¢ 17,31

Equity in investee other comprehensive income 523 55¢
15. Components of net periodic benefit co:

Pension Benefits

Three months ended June 30, Six months ended June 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011
Service cost $ 50€ $ 70¢ % 1,401 $ 1,56¢
Interest cost 1,60¢ 1,80¢ 3,43¢ 3,48¢
Expected return on plan assets (1,782 (1,77¢) (3,487) (3,31%)
Amortization of prior service cost 34 34 69 69
Amortization of net loss 1,13¢ 44¢ 1,821 931
Net periodic benefit cost $ 1,491 $ 122/ § 324t $ 2,73¢

Other Postretirement Benefits

Three months ended June 30, Six months ended June 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011
Service cost $ 37C $ 47 $ 89t $ 834
Interest cost 1,271 1,47¢ 2,751 2,864
Expected return on plan assets — — — —
Amortization of prior service cost (1) (1,06%) (15,539 (2,125 (30,689
Amortization of net loss 1,80¢ 6,54¢ 3,304 12,34¢
Net periodic benefit cost $ 2,38 $ (7,03) $ 4,831 $ (14,647

(1) Plan amendments made in November 2010 result@deduction in OPEB liability and a credit tccamulated other comprehensive
loss. The resulting prior service benefit and atalidosses were amortized ratably into income dlierperiod November 1, 2010 to



June 30, 2011 at which time the CAWV OPEB plan irated.
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Employer contributions

During the six months ended June 30, 2012 , we hade contributions of approximately $5,458 todhalified defined benefit plans
we sponsor.

16. Recently issued and adopted accounting standar

We evaluate the impact of the Financial and Acdogn$tandards Board (“FASB”) accounting standanuidates (“ASUs”) issued. When
the adoption or planned adoption of recently issiBtls will potentially have a material impact orr @onsolidated financial position, results
of operations, and cash flows, we disclose the tifasime and qualitative effects of the adoptiorour consolidated financial statements.

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-04, “FairaMeasurement.” This ASU amended the requirenfentaeasuring fair value
and disclosing information about fair value meaments and is effective for Century on January 122@pon adoption, this standard
resulted in changes to our financial disclosuresdid not have any impact on the reporting of finaincial condition, results of operations or
cash flows.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-05, “Comgmsive Income”This ASU addresses the financial statement presentaf other
comprehensive income and its components. Comparagslect to present items of net income and atberprehensive income in one
continuous statement or in two separate, but canisec statements. At December 31, 2011, we adop&d 2011-05 and included the
updated presentation requirements in the curreanfiial statements. Upon adoption, this standandtes] in changes to our financial
disclosures, but did not have any impact on thentépm of our financial condition, results of opgoas or cash flows.

17. Condensed consolidating financial informatiol

Our 8.0% senior secured notes due 2014 and 7.5 sarsecured notes due 2014 are guaranteed byoacin material existing and
future domestic subsidiaries, except for Nordur8lLLC. Each subsidiary guarantor is 100% owned égt@ry. All guarantees are full and
unconditional; all guarantees are joint and sevdita¢se notes are not guaranteed by our foreigsidiabies (such subsidiaries and Nordural
US LLC, collectively the “Non-Guarantor Subsidia'fe We allocate corporate expenses or income teobsidiaries and charge interest on
certain intercompany balances.

The following summarized condensed consolidatirigriie sheets as of June 30, 2012 and Decembe®B1, 2ondensed consolidating
statements of operations for the three and six hsoahded June 30, 2012 and June 30, 2011 , comblemssolidating statement of
comprehensive income for the three and six momdee June 30, 2012 and June 30, 281d the condensed consolidating statements o
flows for the six months ended June 30, 2012 ané 30, 2011 present separate results for CentuiryGtiarantor Subsidiaries, the Non-
Guarantor Subsidiaries, consolidating adjustmemdistatal consolidated amounts.

This summarized condensed consolidating finanofakimation may not necessarily be indicative ofrégults of operations or financial
position had Century, the guarantor subsidiarigh®mnon-guarantor subsidiaries operated as indigperentities.
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET
As of June 30, 2012

Combined Combined Non-
Guarantor Guarantor Reclassifications anc
Subsidiaries Subsidiaries The Company Eliminations Consolidated
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ — $ 138,69¢ $ 17,81¢ $ — $ 156,51.
Accounts receivable — net 58,90¢ 13,027 — — 71,93¢
Due from affiliates 592,84« 7,758 2,447,111 (3,013,04) 34,67
Inventories 92,41 66,12 — — 158,53¢
Prepaid and other current assets 2,39¢ 36,76( 3,97 — 43,13
Total current assets 746,56¢ 262,36( 2,468,90: (3,013,04) 464,78t
Investment in subsidiaries 42,47 — (1,004,319 961,84: —
Property, plant and equipment — net 326,41« 880,94! 98C (310 1,208,02!
Other assets 21,84( 58,06 38,88t (12,500 106,28:
Total $ 1,137,29. $ 1,201,36! $ 1,504,45: $ (2,064,00) $ 1,779,10.
Liabilities:
Accounts payable, trade $ 30,38( $ 39,22( $ 76C $ — $ 70,36(
Due to affiliates 2,105,33! 101,13! 181,86¢ (2,345,28) 43,05t
Accrued and other current liabilities 12,23¢ 34,69¢ 10,27¢ (22,500 44,71¢
Accrued employee benefits costs — current
portion 13,84( — 2,267 — 16,101
Industrial revenue bonds 7,81¢ — — — 7,81¢
Total current liabilities 2,169,61. 175,05: 195,17: (2,357,78) 182,05:
Senior notes payable — — 250,03t — 250,03¢
Accrued pension benefit costs — less current
portion 37,46: — 30,30( — 67,76:
Accrued postretirement benefit costs — less
current portion 122,99! — 5,43¢ — 128,42
Other liabilities/intercompany loan 64,47¢ 640,07( 3,211 (668,06%) 39,69(
Deferred taxes — less current portion — 90,83: — — 90,83:
Total noncurrent liabilities 224,93: 730,90: 288,98: (668,06%) 576,74¢
Shareholders’ equity:
Preferred stock — — 1 — 1
Common stock 60 12 93: (72 93:
Additional paid-in capital 302,65¢ 149,74: 2,507,05: (452,40) 2,507,05:
Treasury stock, at cost — — (49,929 — (49,92¢)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (130,03) (1,449 (132,06 131,48 (132,06
Retained earnings (accumulated deficit) (1,429,93) 147,10« (2,305,69) 1,282,83. (1,305,69)
Total shareholders’ equity (1,257,25) 295,41( 1,020,29! 961,84 1,020,29
Total $ 1,137,29. $ 1,201,36! $ 1,504,45: $ (2,064,00) $ 1,779,10:.
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET
As of December 31, 2011

Combined Combined Non-
Guarantor Guarantor Reclassifications anc
Subsidiaries Subsidiaries The Company Eliminations Consolidated
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ — $ 159,15 $ 24,24¢ % — $ 183,40:
Accounts receivable — net 40,06: 7,58t — — 47,647
Due from affiliates 616,83( 13,517 2,474,72 (3,060,409 44,66¢
Inventories 96,19’ 75,76¢ — — 171,96:
Prepaid and other current assets 8,66¢ 38,80¢ 3,16¢ (20,000 40,64t
Total current assets 761,75 294,83. 2,502,141 (3,070,40) 488,32(
Investment in subsidiaries 36,96¢ — (995,13) 958,16t —
Property, plant and equipment — net 338,94¢ 878,33: 1,211 (265) 1,218,22!
Other assets 21,87( 43,26¢ 39,41( — 104,54¢
Total $ 1,159,53! $ 1,216,43. $ 1,547,631 $ (2,112,50) $ 1,811,09.
Liabilities:
Accounts payable, trade $ 43,21t $ 42,27¢ $ 67¢ $ — $ 86,17:
Due to affiliates 2,103,68 78,41 205,65: (2,345,84) 41,90¢
Accrued and other current liabilities 10,59¢ 29,82: 10,35¢ (20,000 40,77¢
Accrued employee benefits costs — current
portion 14,267 — 2,431 — 16,69¢
Industrial revenue bonds 7,81¢ — — — 7,81¢
Total current liabilities 2,179,58 150,51: 219,11¢ (2,355,84) 193,36!
Senior notes payable — — 249,51: — 249,51:
Accrued pension benefit costs — less current
portion 40,273 — 30,62: — 70,89¢
Accrued postretirement benefit costs — less
current portion 122,60¢ — 5,46¢ — 128,07¢
Other liabilities/intercompany loan 63,36¢ 686,83: 4,631 (714,829 40,00¢
Deferred taxes — less current portion — 90,95¢ — — 90,95¢
Total noncurrent liabilities 226,25! 777,79. 290,23: (714,829 579,45:;
Shareholders’ equity:
Preferred stock — — 1 — 1
Common stock 60 12 932 (72 932
Additional paid-in capital 297,30( 144,38: 2,506,84. (441,68) 2,506,84.
Treasury stock, at cost — — (45,89) — (45,89))
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (132,23 (1,379 (134,589 133,60¢ (134,58%)
Retained earnings (accumulated deficit) (1,411,42) 145,10¢ (1,289,01)) 1,266,31. (1,289,01)
Total shareholders’ equity (1,246,29) 288,13: 1,038,27 958,16t 1,038,27
Total $ 1,159,53! $ 1,216,43. $ 1,547,631 $ (2,112,50) $ 1,811,009
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Combined Combined Non-
Guarantor Guarantor Reclassifications anc
Subsidiaries Subsidiaries The Company Consolidated
NET SALES:
Third-party customers $ 131,72 $ 52,30. $ — — 184,02:
Related parties 76,46¢ 63,12¢ — — 139,59°
208,191 115,42¢ — — 323,61
Cost of goods sold 223,29 94,36" — — 317,66:
Gross profit (loss) (15,107 21,06« — — 5,957
Other operating expenses — net 3,811 — — — 3,811
Selling, general and administrative expenses
(income) 8,23t (1,087 — — 7,151
Operating income (loss) (27,167) 22,15! — — (5,017
Interest expense — third party (5,94¢) — — — (5,94¢)
Interest expense — affiliates 16,03( (16,030 — — —
Interest income — third party 3 11C — — 11z
Interest income — affiliates — 2 — — 2
Net gain on forward contracts 1,45( — — — 1,45(
Other income (expense) - net (6) 167 — — 161
Income (loss) before income taxes and equity in
earnings of joint ventures (15,637 6,40( — — (9,237)
Income tax expense (432) (2,967) — — (3,395
Income (loss) before equity in earnings of joint
ventures (16,067) 3,431 — — (12,62¢)
Equity in earnings (loss) of joint ventures 38¢€ 34¢ (22,277 11,89: 34¢
Net income (loss) $ (15,677) $ 3,78¢ $ (12,27) $ 11,89. % (12,27
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
For the three months ended June 30, 2011

Combined Combined Non-
Guarantor Guarantor Reclassifications anc
Subsidiaries Subsidiaries The Company Eliminations Consolidated
NET SALES:
Third-party customers $ 143,05. $ 64,03¢ $ — $ — $ 207,09:
Related parties 83,75 75,43t — — 159,18
226,80: 139,47: — — 366,27
Cost of goods sold 212,68! 104,07¢ — — 316,76
Gross profit 14,11¢ 35,39¢ — — 49,51
Other operating income — net (5,20%) — — — (5,20%)
Selling, general and administrative expenses 16,61 1,94: — — 18,557
Operating income 2,70¢ 33,45 — — 36,16:
Interest expense — third party (6,38€) — — — (6,38€)
Interest expense — affiliates 17,44: (17,447 — — —
Interest income — third party 13 52 — — 65
Interest income — affiliates — 70 — — 70
Net gain loss on forward contracts (1,61%) — — — (1,61%)
Other expense - net (900) (232) — — (1,132
Income before income taxes and equity in
earnings of joint ventures 11,26: 15,90: — — 27,16:
Income tax expense (benefit) 1,76¢ (5,405 — — (3,63€)
Income before equity in earnings of joint
ventures 13,03( 10,49¢ — — 23,52¢
Equity in earnings of joint ventures 1,40€ 46( 23,98¢ (25,397 46(
Net income $ 14,43¢ $ 10,95¢ $ 23,98¢ $ (25,399 $ 23,98¢
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
For the six months ended June 30, 2012

Combined Combined Non-
Guarantor Guarantor Reclassifications and
Subsidiaries Subsidiaries The Company Eliminations Consolidated
NET SALES:
Third-party customers $ 267,57' $ 105,28¢ $ — % — % 372,86:
Related parties 150,99¢ 125,94¢ — — 276,94¢
418,57« 231,23! — — 649,80
Cost of goods sold 430,23: 193,02 — — 623,26(
Gross profit (loss) (11,659 38,20¢ — — 26,54¢
Other operating expenses — ne 7,53¢ — — — 7,53¢
Selling, general and
administrative expenses (incon 16,21" (607) — — 15,61(
Operating income (loss) (35,419 38,81t — — 3,401
Interest expense — third party (11,929 — — — (11,929
Interest expense — affiliates 32,24¢ (32,249 — — —
Interest income — third party 14 237 — — 251
Interest income — affiliates — 62 — — 62
Net loss on forward contracts (3,709 — — — (3,709
Other income (expense) - net 79¢ (331) — — 467
Income (loss) before income taxes
and equity in earnings of joint
ventures (17,987 6,53¢ — — (11,457
Income tax expense (68E) (5,537 — — (6,21€)
Income (loss) before equity in
earnings of joint ventures (18,67 1,00¢ — — (17,66¢)
Equity in earnings (loss) of join
ventures 15€ 99C (16,679 16,52: 99C
Net income (loss) $ (18,516 $ 1,99 $ (16,679 $ 16,52: $ (16,679
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
For the six months ended June 30, 2011

Combined Combined Non-
Guarantor Guarantor Reclassifications and
Subsidiaries Subsidiaries The Company Eliminations Consolidated
NET SALES:
Third-party customers $ 273,53¢ $ 121,86 $ —$ — $ 395,40:
Related parties 151,06: 146,14¢ — — 297,21
424,60:. 268,01: — — 692,61:
Cost of goods sold 399,70! 201,07¢ — — 600,78:
Gross profit 24,89’ 66,93: — — 91,83(
Other operating income — net (11,089 — — — (11,089
Selling, general and
administrative expenses 25,71« 3,452 — — 29,16¢
Operating income 10,27: 63,48 — — 73,75
Interest expense — third party (13,169 — — — (13,169
Interest expense — affiliates 34,67: (34,677) — — —
Interest income — third party 43 177 — — 22C
Interest income — affiliates — 18¢ — — 18<
Net loss on forward contracts (6,426 — — — (6,426
Other expense - net (284) (177 — — (455)
Income before income taxes and
equity in earnings of joint
ventures 25,11« 28,99¢ — — 54,11z
Income tax expense (benefit) 3,59( (10,349 — — (6,759
Income before equity in earnings
joint ventures 28,70« 18,64¢ — — 47,35
Equity in earnings of joint
ventures 2,60¢ 1,67¢ 49,03: (51,640 1,67¢
Net income $ 31,31 $ 20,32¢ $ 49,03 $ (51,640 $ 49,03:
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the three months ended June 30, 2012

Comprehensive income (loss)
Net income (loss) $

Other comprehensive income (loss) before inco
tax effect:

Net unrealized gain (loss) on financial
instruments

Net loss (gain) reclassified to income on
financial instruments

Net gain on foreign currency cash flow hedges
reclassified to income

Defined benefit plans and other postretirement
benefits:

Net gain (loss) arising during the period
Amortization of prior service benefit
Amortization of net loss

Other comprehensive income (loss) before inco
tax effect

Income tax effect

Other comprehensive income (loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) $

Combined Combined Non-
Guarantor Guarantor Reclassifications
Subsidiaries Subsidiaries The Company and Eliminations Consolidated
(15,67) $ 3,78¢ $ (12,27) $ 11,89: $ (12,277
26 — 26 (26) 26
20¢ — 20¢ (209) 20¢
— (46) (46) 46 (46)
— — 49 — 49
(1,047) — (1,03 1,047 (1,031)
2,42¢ — 2,941 (2,429 2,941
1,617 (46) 2,14¢ (1,579 2,14¢
(379) 8 (382) 365 (383)
1,244 (39) 1,76¢ (1,206 1,76¢
(14,439 $ 3,74¢ $ (10,517 $ 10,68t $ (10,512

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the three months ended June 30, 2011

Combined Combined Non-
Guarantor Guarantor Reclassifications and
Subsidiaries Subsidiaries The Company Eliminations Consolidated
Comprehensive income (loss)
Net income (loss) $ 14,43¢ $ 10,95¢ $ 23,98¢ $ (25,397 $ 23,98¢
Other comprehensive income (los
before income tax effect:
Net unrealized gain (loss) on
financial instruments (27 — 27 27 27
Net loss (gain) reclassified to
income on financial instrument (39) — (39 39 (39
Net gain on foreign currency
cash flow hedges reclassified to
income — 47 47 47 47
Defined benefit plans and other
postretirement benefits:
Net gain (loss) arising during
the period — — (5,769 — (5,769
Amortization of prior service
benefit (15,51 — (15,507 15,517 (15,507
Amortization of net loss 6,72: — 6,99t (6,729 6,99¢
Other comprehensive income (los
before income tax effect (8,860) 47 (14,389 8,907 (14,389
Income tax effect (7,257) 8 (2,519 7,24: (2,519
Nthar rnmnrahancivia incAama (In MR 11N R0\ (1A QNN 1A 1R( (1A QNN




Comprehensive income (loss) $ (1,675 $ 10,917 $ 7,08t $ 9,242 $ 7,088
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the six months ended June 30, 2012

Combined Combined Non-
Guarantor Guarantor Reclassifications anc
Subsidiaries Subsidiaries The Company Eliminations Consolidated
Comprehensive income (loss)
Net income (loss) $ (18,516 $ 1,99¢ $ (16,67 $ 16,52: $ (16,679
Other comprehensive income (loss) before
income tax effect:
Net unrealized gain (loss) on financial
instruments (220 — (220 22C (220
Net loss (gain) reclassified to income on
financial instruments 481 — 481 (481) 481
Net gain on foreign currency cash flow
hedges reclassified to income — (93 (93 93 (93
Defined benefit plans and other postretiremel
benefits:
Net gain (loss) arising during the period — — 49 — 49
Amortization of prior service benefit (2,08¢) — (2,05€) 2,08¢ (2,05€)
Amortization of net loss 4,102 — 5,12¢ (4,102 5,12¢
Other comprehensive income (loss) before
income tax effect 2,27¢ (93 3,28¢ (2,182 3,28¢
Income tax effect (74) 17 (765) 57 (765)
Other comprehensive income (loss) 2,201 (76) 2,521 (2,125 2,521
Comprehensive income (loss) $ (16,319 $ 1,91¢ $ (14,157 $ 14,397 $ (14,159

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the six months ended June 30, 2011

Combined Combined Non-
Guarantor Guarantor Reclassifications and
Subsidiaries Subsidiaries The Company Eliminations Consolidated
Comprehensive income (loss)
Net income (loss) $ 31,31 $ 20,32¢ $ 49,03. $ (51,640 $ 49,03:
Other comprehensive income (los
before income tax effect:
Net unrealized gain (loss) on
financial instruments (33 — (50 50 (33
Net loss (gain) reclassified to
income on financial instrument (50) — (33 33 (50
Net gain on foreign currency
cash flow hedges reclassified to
income — (93 (93 93 (93
Defined benefit plans and other
postretirement benefits:
Net gain (loss) arising during
the period — — (5,769 — (5,769
Amortization of prior service
benefit (30,657) — (30,620 30,65: (30,620
Amortization of net loss 12,731 — 13,28( (12,737) 13,28(
Other comprehensive income (los
before income tax effect (27,999 (93 (23,285 18,09: (23,285
Income tax effect (7,137) 16 (4,979 7,11¢ (4,979
Other comprehensive income (lo (25,129 77 (28,25%) 25,20¢ (28,25%)



Comprehensive income (|oss) $ 6,182 $ 20,25 $ 20,77¢ $ (26,43‘) $ 20,77¢
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the six months ended June 30, 2012

Combined Combined Non-
Guarantor Guarantor
Subsidiaries Subsidiaries The Company Consolidated
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ (19,539 $ 17,91¢ $ — 3 (1,615
Investing activities:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (3,23)) (2,879 (55) (6,16%)
Nordural expansion — (3,586 — (3,58¢)
Purchase of carbon anode assets (14,529 — — (14,529
Investments in and advances to joint ventures — — (200 (200
Payments received on advances to joint ventures — — 3,16¢ 3,16¢
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and egeip 10 58 — 68
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (a7,74% (6,407) 2,911 (21,24))
Financing activities:
Borrowings under revolving credit facility — — 18,07¢ 18,07¢
Repayments under revolving credit facility — — (18,07¢) (18,07¢)
Intercompany transactions 37,27¢ (31,970 (5,309 —
Repurchase of common stock — — (4,039 (4,037)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 37,27¢ (31,970 (9,349) (4,037)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents — (20,45¢) (6,43)) (26,889
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the period — 159,15 24,24 183,40:
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the period $ — $ 138,69¢ $ 17,81: $ 156,51
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the six months ended June 30, 2011

Combined Combined Non-
Guarantor Guarantor
Subsidiaries Subsidiaries The Company Consolidated
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ (20,26() $ 4,128 $ — 3 (16,139
Investing activities:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (2,860) (4,169 (329 (7,359
Nordural expansion — (7,969 — (7,96¢)
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and egeip — 56 — 56
Payments received on advances to joint ventures — 3,05¢ 3,05¢
Restricted and other cash deposits 3,67 — — 3,67:
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 813 (12,07¢) 2,721 (8,53¢6)
Financing activities:
Repayments of long-term debt — — (47,067 (47,067
Repayment of contingent obligation (189 — — (18¢9)
Intercompany transactions 20,20¢ (13,319 (6,895 —
Issuance of common stock - net — — 32 32
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 20,02( (13,319 (53,930 (47,22¢)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 573 (21,265 (51,209 (71,899
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the period — 214,92 89,37: 304,29¢
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the period $ 57¢ % 193,65¢ $ 38,17( $ 232,40:
18. Subsequent even

We have evaluated all subsequent events througthatieethe financial statements were issued.
Increasein letters of credit to Big Rivers

In July 2012, in accordance with the terms of cuwer agreement and based on recent billings, weased our outstanding letters of
credit with the Big Rivers Electric Corporation $y,000 from approximately $ 30,000 to $ 34,000e increase in our outstanding letters of
credit directly reduces our availability under oevolving line of credit on a dollar for dollar bhas

Ingram Barge Lawsuit

In February 2010, our subsidiary, CAWV, was named defendant in a lawsuit filed by Ingram Bargenpany in the United States
District Court for the Middle District of Tennesséée lawsuit alleges that CAWYV breached two baggiantracts with Ingram Barge by
failing to consume a specified amount of barginyises as a result of the curtailment of operat@nRavenswood. Ingram Barge is seeking
damages of approximately $4,6pl0is interest. In July 2012, the trial court geghtngram Barge's motion for summary judgment aferrec
the matter to a Magistrate Judge to determineyifdamages have been incurred by Ingram Barge. ni&ed to file a motion for
reconsideration with the District Court. While we ot believe that Ingram Barge has suffered amyadges and intend to continue to
vigorously defend ourselves against this claimpwieve that it is reasonably possible that a dasfqgdgment may be entered against
CAWV. We estimate that the range for this potdrdiss is between $0 and $5,000 .
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This quarterly report includes forward-looking staents, which are subject to the “safe harbor’texthy section 27A of the Securities
Act of 1933, as amended, and section 21E of ther8ies Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. We maerfaward-looking statements in
our SEC filings, press releases, news articlesjmgs presentations and when we are speaking alflefithe Company. Forward-looking
statements can be identified by the fact that tleepot strictly relate to historical or currentt&aOften, they include the words “believe,”
“expect,” “target,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “plan,”seek,” “estimate,” “potential,” “project,” or wdss of similar meaning, or future or
conditional verbs such as “will,” “would,” “shoultf;could,” “might,” or “may.” Forwardiooking statements are based on current expecs
and assumptions that are subject to risks and tamcges, which could cause our actual resultsfferdmaterially from those reflected in the
forward-looking statements. Factors that could eaarscontribute to such differences include, batrast limited to, those discussed in Item
1A of Part | of our 2011 Annual Report on Form 1@#d those discussed in other documents we file thé Securities and Exchange
Commission. We undertake no obligation to revispullicly release the results of any revision testhforwardeoking statements, except
required by law. Given these risks and uncertantieaders are cautioned not to place undue reliansuch forward-looking statements.

Forward-looking statements in this quarterly repfat example, include statements about the folhgnsubjects, among other things:

» Our business objectives, strategies and initiatitresgrowth of our business and our competitiveition and prospect

e Our assessment of significant economic, findnpulitical and other factors and developments thay affect our results, including
currency risks;

e Our assessment of the aluminum market, alumiptices, aluminum financing, inventories and warediog arrangements and other
similar matters;

« Aluminum prices and their effect on our financiabkfiion and results of operatio

e Future construction investment and developméntiofacility in Helguvik, Iceland and with respedo the Century Anode project,
including our discussions regarding power purcltegeements, future capital expenditures, the adstempletion or cancellation,
production capacity and the sources of fundingHerfacility;

» Our hedging and other strategies to mitigate rigk their potential effect

*  Our curtailed operations, including the potentestart of curtailed operations, and potential éuntant of other domestic ass¢

»  Our procurement of electricity, alumina, carlpsoducts and other raw materials and our assesshpriting and other terms
relating thereto including the potential benefitshee amended Santee Cooper Service Agreementhambtential benefits to be
provided to Grundartangi and our planned Helguwileker from the recent purchase by Century Anodesudon anode assets in
Netherlands

» Estimates of our pension and other postemployasilities and future payments, deferred incaareassets and property plant and
equipment impairment, environmental liabilities arider contingent liabilities and contractual corimants;

e Our agreement in principle with the CAWYV retisegnd any contributions to a voluntary employeeshieassociation relating to that
agreement;

e Changes in, or the elimination of, the retiresdinal benefit plans and programs of certain ofsulosidiaries and their effect on our
financial position and results of operation;

» Discussions with the Pension Benefit Guaranty Catpan regarding our Ravenswood facil

» Critical accounting policies and estimates,ithpact or anticipated impact of recent accountimpuncements or changes in
accounting principle;

» Our anticipated tax liabilities, benefits or refit

» Our assessment of the ultimate outcome of audétg litigation, including litigation with our faner CEO, and environmental
matters and liabilities relating thereto;

e Compliance with laws and regulations and the efé¢¢titure laws and regulatiol

« Our capital resources, projected financing sesiand projected uses of capital including witlpeesto the E. ON contingent
obligation; and

e Our debt levels and intentions to incur or repadytdie the future
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Item 2. Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operations
Recent Developments
Mt. Holly Aluminum Company and Santee Cooper amend service agreement

In April 2012, Santee Cooper adopted a revisedditable Supplemental Power Rate Schedule effediive 1, 2012 and Mt. Holly and
Santee Cooper have subsequently amended the téiistdolly's power agreement to take advantagthefnew rate schedule. The revision
allows Santee Cooper and Mt. Holly to agree toesaitior a portion of Mt. Holly's Supplemental Powequirements from a designated
resource. The energy charge for Supplemental Pbararthe designated resource is based on thefsts of the resource rather than Santee
Cooper's system average fuel costs. The amendnaethts power agreement may provide a benefit toHdtly provided that the energy co
of the designated resource are below Santee Ce@ystem average fuel costs.

Century purchases carbon anode assets in the Netherlands

In June 2012, our wholly owned subsidiary, Centimpdes, purchased substantially all of the asddtsedformer Zalco anode
production facility located in Vlissingen, the Nettands for approximately $12.5 million. In connentwith the purchase, we also entered
into a ground lease with respect to the faciligttls renewal at our option. As part of the tratisa¢ Century Anodes will not assume, and is
indemnified against, any historical liabilitiestbk facility.

In anticipation of a restart of 75,000 metric t@fi@nnual anode production capacity in the thirdrtgr of 2013, we intend to invest
approximately $45 million, including capital expétdes, restart expenses and working capital tovopeé production for Grundartangi and to
comply with environmental regulations. Upon resttre facility will provide a source of captive ateoproduction for Grundartangi and the
planned Helguvik smelter, and replace certain asoggly contracts that will terminate in 2013.

CAWV Retiree VEBA contributions

We have reached an agreement in principle wittCR&/V retirees to make contributions to a voluntargployee beneficiary associat
(“VEBA") trust that would provide certain healthresbenefits to these retirees and their eligibjgetdelents in the event of a restart of our
Ravenswood facility. If this agreement were erténto, our obligations under the agreement, incilgény contributions to the VEBA,
would be contingent upon the occurrence of seatate events that are necessary in order to tab@iRavenswood facility. None of these
events, including the finalization of this agreemeane certain to occur.
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Results of Operations
The following discussion reflects our historicadults of operations.
Century’s financial highlights include:

Three months ended June Six months ended June

30, 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011
(In thousands, except per share data)
Net sales:
Third-party customers $ 184,02: $ 207,09: $ 372,86 $ 395,40:
Related parties 139,59° 159,18t 276,94¢ 297,21
Total $ 323,61¢ % 366,27° $ 649,80¢ $ 692,61
Gross profit $ 5957 $ 4951« $ 26,54¢ $  91,83(
Net income (loss) $ (12,27) $ 23,98t $ (16,679 $  49,03:
Earnings (loss) per common share:
Basic and Diluted $ (019 $ 024 % (0.19 $ 0.4¢

Three months ended June Six months ended June

30, 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011

Shipments — primary aluminum (metric tons):

Direct 93,83: 84,50¢ 187,91 164,98t

Toll 66,997 66,97« 132,87 130,67:
Total 160,82! 151,48: 320,79 295,66:
Net sales (in millions) 2012 2011 $ Difference % Difference
Three months ended June 30, $ 323.€ $ 366.c $ (42.7) (11.71%
Six months ended June 30, $ 649.6 $ 692.¢ $ (42.¢) (6.2)%

Lower price realizations for our primary aluminuhigmnents in the three months ended June 30, 2012 dves to lower LME prices for
primary aluminum, which were partially offset bycrerased Midwest premiums. The lower price reabiratiresulted in a $69.1 million sales
decrease. Higher shipment volumes had a $26.4omillositive impact on net sales. Direct shipmemmsifour three operating smelters
increased 9,322 metric tons in the three monthe@&ddne 30, 2012, due to the restart of idled dgpaicour Hawesville facility. Toll
shipments increased 23 metric tons relative tsémee period last year.

Lower price realizations for our primary aluminuhigments in the six months ended June 30, 2012 dwgzdo lower LME prices for
primary aluminum, which were partially offset bycreased Midwest premiums. The lower price reabratiresulted in a $107.9 million sales
decrease. Higher shipment volumes had a $65.lomilositive impact on net sales. Direct shipmemmsifour three operating smelters
increased 22,930 metric tons in the six months éddee 30, 2012, due to the restart of idled cépatiour Hawesville facility. Toll
shipments increased 2,204 metric tons relativeésame period last year.
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Gross profit (in millions) 2012 2011 $ Difference % Difference
Three months ended June 30, $ 6.C $ 49.5 $ (43.5) (87.9%
Six months ended June 30, $ 26.E $ 91.¢ $ (65.) (71.)%

During the three months ended June 30, 2012, lpwee realizations, net of LME-based alumina cost BME-based power cost,
decreased gross profit by $51.6 million. The addail shipment volume increased gross profit by $@lBon. In addition, we experienced
$11.2 million in net cost decreases, relative todame period in 2011, comprised of: lower powelrratural gas costs at our U.S. smelters,
$0.9 million; lower costs for materials, supplieglanaintenance, $6.3 million; other cost reducti@is7 million; offset by increased
depreciation, $0.6 million. In addition, we recaddecharge of $2.9 million in June 2011 relatedrionsurance recovery that went in to
litigation.

During the six months ended June 30, 2012, lowieepealizations, net of LME-based alumina cost bikE-based power cost,
decreased gross profit by $86.5 million. The addél shipment volume increased gross profit by $&llRon. In addition, we experienced
$4.4 million in net cost decreases, relative toddmme period in 2011, comprised of: increased pawdmatural gas costs at our U.S. smel
$2.0 million; increased costs for materials, suggphnd maintenance, $2.2 million; offset by redutsateciation, $0.3 million and other cost
reductions, $5.4 million. In addition, we recordedharge of $2.9 million in June 2011 related ténsarance recovery that went in to
litigation.

Our operating costs in 2011 were negatively immhbtethe costs to restart idled capacity at the étawlle facility. Their impact is
included in the amounts reported above.

Declines in LME prices at the end of the secondtguaf 2012, as compared to the prior period-eggirice levels, resulted in a decline
in the market value of our inventory relative ®dbst basis, resulting in charges to cost of gsotisfor the three months ended June 30,
2012 of $5.4 million. During the three months endi&arch 31, 2012, our cost of goods sold was redbge$tLl 7.0 million to reflect the mark
basis of inventory sold during the quarter that peeliously been written-down to its market value #o reflect the lower of cost or market
value of the March 31, 2012 inventory. The combia#dct of the first and second quarter 2012 aistiig an increase in gross profit of $11.6
million.

Other operating expenses (income) - net (in millions) 2012 2011 $ Difference % Difference
Three months ended June 30, $ 3.8 % (5.2 % 9.C 173.9)%
Six months ended June 30, $ 75 $ 110 $ 18.€ (167.6%

Other operating expenses (income) reflects theiaggute costs at the Ravenswood facility. In additnet benefits of $8.9 million and
$18.3 million were recorded at Ravenswood in thedland six months ended June 30, 2011, respsgtavelibstantial portion of the net
benefits recorded represents the amortizationiof pervice credits and actuarial losses resuftiog the elimination of medical benefits for
retirees of the Ravenswood facility.

Selling, general and administrative expenses (in millions) 2012 2011 $ Difference % Difference
Three months ended June 30, $ 72 % 18.€ $ (11.9) (61.9%
Six months ended June 30, $ 15.€ $ 29.2 $ (13.€) (46.€)%

During the three and six months ended June 30,,204 tecorded selling, general and administratherges of $7.7 million related to
contractual impact of changes in the Company's @oabDirectors and executive management team; thieamyes did not repeat in 2012. In
2012, our expenditures related to the Helguvik poavbitration were reduced and we were reimbureed fportion of arbitration expenditu
incurred in 2011.
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Net gain (loss) on forward contracts (in millions) 2012 2011 $ Difference % Difference
Three months ended June 30, $ 15 $ 1.6 $ 3.1 (193.9%
Six months ended June 30, $ 3.7% 6.9 % 2.7 (42.2%

The net gain (loss) on forward contracts for thre¢hand six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2Mtedgdrimarily to marking-torarket
and recording settlements of option contractswheat put in place to provide partial downside ppeatection for our domestic facilities. As
of June 30, 2012, all of these option contractelexpired.

Income tax expense (in millions) 2012 2011 $ Difference % Difference
Three months ended June 30, $ 34 % (3.6) % 0.2 (5.6)%
Six months ended June 30, $ (6.2 $ 6.9 % 0.€ (8.8%

Our 2012 and 2011 income tax expense was primaiilgen by our earnings in Iceland. In addition,idgrthe three months ended
June 30, 2011 , we had a partial offset to inccameekpense due to a discrete tax benefit arismm the elimination of medical benefits for
retirees of the Ravenswood facility.

Equity in the earnings of joint ventures (in millions) 2012 2011 $ Difference % Difference
Three months ended June 30, $ 03 % 0t $ (0.2 (40.0%
Six months ended June 30, $ 1C $ 1.7 % 0.7 (41.2%

The amounts reported in both periods primarilyeefiCentury's equity in the earnings of its joiahture, BHH.
Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our principal sources of liquidity are availableskiacash flow from operations and available borngsiunder our revolving credit
facility. We have also raised capital in the pasbtigh the public equity and debt markets. We @dypkxplore various other financing
alternatives. Our principal uses of cash are thdifig of operating costs (including postemployntemefits), maintenance of curtailed
production facilities, payments of principal antkirest on our outstanding debt, the funding oftehpixpenditures, investments in our growth
activities and in related businesses, repurchasssnomon stock, working capital and other geneoaporate requirements.

Our consolidated cash and cash equivalents bakniine 30, 2012 was approximately $157 million parad to $183 million at
December 31, 2011. We received payment of apprdeisn&21 million customer receivable in July 20d8¢ business day after its June 29th
due date. The receipt of this payment is not regée the June 30, 2012 consolidated cash andezpshalents balance. Century's revolving
credit facility matures in July 2014. As of June 3012 , our credit facility had no loan amountsstanding and approximately $58 million of
net availability. We have approximately $42 milliohletters of credit outstanding under our créaliflity. In July 2012, we increased our
outstanding letters of credit by $4 million, whidiectly reduces our availability under our revalyiline of credit on a dollar for dollar basis.
Future curtailments of domestic production capaeityild reduce domestic accounts receivable anchiowg, which comprise the borrowing
base of our credit facility, and would result ic@responding reduction in availability under thedit facility.

In August 2011, our Board of Directors approved@ fillion stock repurchase program. Through June2812 , we have expended
approximately $50 million under the program. Atd@0, 2012 , we had approximately $10 million rermay under the repurchase program
authorization. The repurchase program may be sdspeor discontinued at any time.
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We have $249.6 million in 8.0% senior secured nptable that will mature on May 15, 2014. We mayénuired to make installment
payments for the E.ON contingent obligation. Thesgments are contingent based on the LME priceinfgry aluminum and the level of
Hawesville's operations. Based on the LME forwamatket at June 30, 2012 and management’s estimatdpwot expect to make any
payments for the E.ON contingent obligation un@i22.

Based on current actuarial and other assumptioagxpect to make contributions to the qualifiedrdef benefit plans we sponsor of
approximately $9 million during 2012. Through J&® 2012 , we have made contributions to thesespda$5.5 million. We may choose to
make additional contributions to these plans franetto time at our discretion.

In June 2011, the Pension Benefit Guaranty Cormrdthe “PBGC”) informed us that it believed tlatcessation of operations” under
the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 10ERISA”) had occurred at our Ravenswood faciliy a result of the curtailment of
operations at the facility and requested that wgaga in discussions with the PBGC relating ther&tte have notified the PBGC that we do
not believe that a “cessation of operations” hasioed and have entered into ongoing discussiotistive PBGC to resolve the matter. If a
“cessation of operations$ ultimately determined to have occurred under&Rlit may be necessary for Century Aluminum of YWésginia
to accelerate the timing of additional contribuido certain of its defined pension plans or ptis¢iocollateral with the PBGC or negotiate an
alternative agreement.

In March 2012, we reached an agreement in prineygie the CAWYV retirees to make contributions tecduntary employee beneficiary
association (“VEBA")trust that would provide certain health care besadi these retirees and their eligible dependarttse event of a rest:
of our Ravenswood facility. If this agreement wergered into, our obligations under the agreenieciyyding any contributions to the
VEBA, would be contingent upon the occurrence oksal future events that are necessary in ordezdtart the Ravenswood facility. None
of these events, including the finalization of taggeement, are certain to occur.

Under an agreement with the Government of Iceldlmidural Grundartangi ehf agreed to prepay taxemd2012, 2011 and 2010 as an
advance levy of income taxes and other governméamtak for the period of 2013 through 2018. Thewnt of prepaid taxes paid through
June 30, 2012 was approximately $6.5 million ancewgect to prepay an additional $3.2 million in 20TThe prepaid taxes will offset taxes
otherwise payable in equal installments over theode2013 through 2018. In addition, in 2012, weeot to make estimated income tax
payments in Iceland of approximately $12.2 millidihrough June 30, 2012 , we made approximately $dli®n of these payments.

We paid approximately $20 million in net withholditex for intercompany dividend payments in Icelan@011 and paid an additional
$9.5 million through the first six months of 201%e expect to receive approximately $30 million ithlrolding tax refunds in the fourth
quarter of 2012 related to withholding taxes paidrdercompany dividend payments through Febru@iy22\We expect to pay an additional
$12.5 million in withholding taxes in the third qter of 2012 which we expect will be refunded ie fburth quarter of 2013. The withholdi
taxes and associated refunds are payable in Idelarmha (“ISK”) and we are subject to foreign @ncy risk associated with fluctuations in
the value of the U.S. dollar as compared the ISKK.d& not expect to receive any material domesticgtunds in the near future.

In June 2012, Nordural Grundartangi entered inte\a supplemental power contract with Landsvirkjline supplemental power
contract, which will expire in October 2029 (or mpthe occurrence of certain earlier events), witvide Nordural Grundartangi with
supplemental power, as Nordural Grundartangi mgyest from time to time, at LME-based variable saiordural Grundartangi has agreed
to make certain prepayments to Landsvirkjun in eation with the contract, which will reduce thegeripaid for power at the time of
consumption.
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Capital Resources

We intend to finance our future recurring capitgpenditures from available cash and our cash flmmfoperations. For major
investment projects, such as the Helguvik prometwould seek financing from various capital anahlonarkets and may potentially pursue
the formation of strategic alliances. We may beblméo issue additional debt or equity securit@@sp issue these securities on attractive
terms, due to a number of factors including a lafctemand, unfavorable pricing, poor economic cbolé, unfavorable interest rates, or our
financial condition or credit rating at the timeuttire uncertainty in the U.S. and internationalkets and economies may adversely affect
liquidity, our ability to access the capital markand our financial condition.

Capital expenditures for the six months ended 3e&012 were $9.8 million, $3.6 million of whictes/related to the Helguvik project,
with the balance principally related to upgradimgduction equipment, improving facilities and cogipy with environmental requirements.
We believe capital spending in 2012, excludingabivity on Century Anodes and Helguvik projectlllwe approximately $20 to $25
million.

In order to restart the first 75,000 metric tongohual anode capacity at the Century Anodes prajeccurrently intend to make
approximately $30 million in capital expendituragepthe next 12 months. We expect this capacitybeilrestarted in the third quarter of
2013 and will provide a captive anode supply tdaep third-party anode supply contracts that weithtinate in 2013. Before committing to
this capital program, we intend to evaluate theemirand prospective global economic climate. Ifdeem the environment unfavorable, we
have the option to defer the capital program and the restart of the anode facility. We would,tfee short term, increase our purchases
other suppliers, including BHH.

We have made and continue to make capital experdifor the construction and development of ougtielk project. We have
substantial future contractual commitments foriHedguvik project. If we were to cancel the Helgupitoject, we estimate that our exposure
to contract cancellation costs would be approxifge20 million. We are continuing to negotiate witte power suppliers to the project to
remove all the remaining conditions to their olligas to supply contracted power. The timing of plogver availability together with other
factors, including financing, will determine thentng of any resumption of major construction adyivat Helguvik. We expect that the portion
of capital expenditures for this project that wdl find from our existing cash and operating cdstwviwill be approximately $1 million per
month until the restart of major construction aititd. We cannot, at this time, predict when thetag of major construction activity will
occur.

Historical

Our statements of cash flows for the six monthsdnhline 30, 2012 and 2011 are summarized below:

Six months ended June 30,

2012 2011
(dollars in thousands)
Net cash used in operating activities $ (1,615 $ (16,13%)
Net cash used in investing activities (21,247 (8,53¢)
Net cash used in financing activities (4,037%) (47,229
Net change in cash and cash equivalents $ (26,889 $ (71,895

Net cash used in operating activities in the sixithe ended June 30, 2012 was $1.6 million comparedt cash used in operating
activities of $16.1 million in the first six montle$ 2011. The increase in cash from operation®i?2vas primarily due to reduced
withholding tax payments in Iceland, lower pensao benefit contributions, an increase in workiagital, which were partially offset by t
impact of lower LME prices. Additionally, we receit an approximately $21 million customer receivablduly 2012, one business day after
its June 29th due date; this resulted in an iner@athe use of working capital of the same amount.
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Our net cash used in investing activities for ting Kix months of 2012 was $21.2 million compate&8.5 million in the six months
ended June 30, 2011. The increase in cash useprimgarily due to the purchase of carbon anode a$eet14.5 million, which consisted
primarily of the purchase price of $12.5 milliorffset somewhat by lower capital expenditures in28ad the return of restricted cash
deposits in 2011 of $3.7 million.

Our net cash used in financing activities for thensonths ended June 30, 2012 was $4.0 million. ddsh used was related to the
repurchase of common stock. Our net cash usedamding activities for the first six months of 20&és $47.2 million. This use was
primarily for the redemption of our 1.75% convelgilsenior notes in May 2011.

Other Commitments and Contingencies

We are a defendant in several actions relatingtmus aspects of our business. While there arertainties relating to the ultimate
disposition of any litigation, management, baseddormation currently available, does not beli¢hvat the resolution of any of these
lawsuits, either individually or in the aggregatél] have a material adverse effect on our finahc@ndition, results of operations or liquidity.
See Note 10 Commitments and contingentdebe consolidated financial statements includertin for additional information.
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Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures abut Market Risk

Commodity price risk

We are exposed to price risk for primary aluminiffe manage our exposure to fluctuations in the mfq@imary aluminum through
financial instruments designed to protect our dodegrice risk exposure for our domestic productitmaddition, we manage our exposure
to fluctuations in our costs by purchasing certdiour alumina and power requirements under supphtracts with prices tied to the same
indices as our aluminum sales contracts (the LM&f primary aluminum). Our risk management atiéig do not include any trading or
speculative transactions.

Apart from the Glencore Metal Agreement, the Gleac®weep Agreement, the Glencore Nordural MetakAgrent and the Southwire
Metal Agreement, we had the following forward dely contractual commitments:

Other forward delivery contracts

December 31,

June 30, 2012 2011
(in metric tons)
Other forward delivery contracts — total 40,99( 41,50:
Other forward delivery contracts — Glencore 2,312 3,42
Other forward delivery contracts — fixed price 19¢ 41

We had no outstanding primary aluminum forwardfiicial sales contracts at June 30, 2012 . We hdikedd price forward financial
contracts to purchase aluminum at June 30, 2012 .

Natural gas forward financial contracts

To mitigate the volatility of our natural gas cdsie to the natural gas markets, we have enteredixad-price forward financial contrac
which settle in cash in the period correspondinthéintended usage of natural gas. These forwamttacts were designated as cash flow
hedges.

As of June 30, 2012 , we did not have a signifiexqmosure to the market price of natural gas femitural gas forward financial
contracts outstanding.

Foreign currency

We are exposed to foreign currency risk due tadlations in the value of the U.S. dollar as comgaoethe Icelandic krona (“ISK™gurc
and the Chinese yuan. Grundartangi’s labor cpsits,of its maintenance costs and other local sesvare denominated in ISK and a portion
of its anode costs are denominated in euros ande€biyuan. Our tax payments in Iceland for wittimgl taxes on intercompany dividends
and estimated payments of Icelandic income taxdsaag associated refunds are denominated in ISKa vesult, an increase or decrease in
the value of those currencies relative to the ddilar would affect Grundartangi’s operating masgitWe expect to incur capital expenditures
for capital investments in Century Anodes in theHgdands over the next three years. In additi@nt@y Anodes labor costs, maintenance
costs and other local services will be denominatexiiros. We expect to incur capital expendituoeghe construction of the Helguvik
project, although we continue to evaluate the Hélgproject’s cost, scope and schedule. A sigaiftcportion of the capital expenditures for
the Helguvik project are forecasted to be denorathat currencies other than the U.S. dollar, wigini§icant portions in ISK, euros and Sw
francs.

We may manage our exposure by entering into foreigrency forward contracts or option contractsfé@ecasted transactions and
projected cash flows for foreign currencies in fatperiods. As of June 30, 2012 , we had no foreigrency forward contracts outstanding.
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Natural Economic Hedges

The following estimate of our exposure to the cordityoprice of aluminum is necessarily limited, addes not take into consideration
our inventory or forward delivery contracts, or thfésetting impact on the sales price of primamnynaihum products. Our alumina contracts
are indexed to the LME price for primary aluminundgrovide a natural hedge for approximately 16%uwfproduction. As of June 30,
2012 , approximately 33% of our production for 2@l&s hedged by our LME-based alumina contractsgr@rundartangs electrical powe
and tolling contracts.

Risk Management

Our metals, foreign currency and natural gas riskagement activities are subject to the controldarettion of senior management
within guidelines established by Century’s Boardafectors. These activities are regularly repotte@entury’s Board of Directors.
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Item 4. Controls and Procedures
a. Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of June 30, 2012 , we carried out an evaluatiodger the supervision and with the participatibowr management, including our
Chief Executive Officer and our principal financddficer, of the effectiveness of our disclosuratrols and procedures. Based upon that
evaluation, our management, including the Chiefdatige Officer and our principal financial officdras concluded that our disclosure
controls and procedures were effective as of JOn@Q&L2 .

b. Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Repding

During the three months ended June 30, 2012 , there no changes in our internal controls overfaa reporting that materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materiallfeaf, our internal controls over financial repogtin
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PART Il - OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

In November 2011, we were named as a defendaniaiwsauit filed by our former Chief Executive Offigd.ogan Kruger, alleging brea
of contract and wrongful termination in violatiohpublic policy. The lawsuit alleges that Centaryticipatorily breached the employment
and severance protection agreements between Centdryir. Kruger and that Century is obligated tdken@arious severance payments in
excess of $20 million to Mr. Kruger under such agnents. In addition, the complaint seeks unsgetidiamages, including exemplary and
punitive damages, for wrongful termination, as veallcosts and attorneys’ fees. The trial courtitzassferred the matter to an arbitration
panel for resolution. We believe these claims athomt merit and intend to vigorously defend oursgjainst them. The matter isin a
preliminary stage, and we cannot predict the ulintaitcome of this action or estimate a range séixde losses related to this matter at this
time. We do not expect that the ultimate costeswmive this action will have a material adverseafbn our financial condition, results of
operations or liquidity, regardless of the finataame.

In March 2011, the purported stockholder clasastpending against us consolidatedina®: Century Aluminum Company Securities
Litigation were dismissed with prejudice by the United Statissrict Court for the Northern District of Califioia. The plaintiffs in the class
actions allege that we improperly accounted fohdbmsvs associated with the termination of certfairward financial sales contracts which
accounting allegedly resulted in artificial inflati of our stock price and investor losses. Pldmtfe seeking rescission of our February 2009
common stock offering, unspecified compensatoryatges, including interest thereon, costs and exgearse attorneys’ fees. In March 2011,
plaintiffs filed a notice of appeal to the ordedgndgment entered by the court dismissing theiines. The notice of appeal remains pending
before the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Ninth @itc

Item 1A. Risk Factors

For a discussion of risk factors relating to ousihess, please refer to Iltem 1A of Part | of out28nnual Report on Form 10-K.
Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities andse of Proceeds.

(c) Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer

In August 2011, we announced that our Board of @ines approved a $60 million stock repurchase pnogiUnder the program, Century
is authorized to repurchase up to $60 million of sutstanding shares of common stock, from timgnte, on the open market at prevailing
market prices, in block trades or otherwise. Thertg and amount of any shares repurchased willeberchined by our management based on

its evaluation of market conditions, the tradinge@mof our common stock and other factors. Thekstepurchase program may be suspended
or discontinued at any time.

Total Number of Shares Approximate Dollar Value

Total Number  Average Purchased as Part of of Shares that May Yet Be

of Shares Price Paid  Publicly Announced Purchased Under the

2012 Periods Purchased  per Share Programs Program
January 1 — January 31 — — — $14,108,966
February 1 — February 29 — — — $14,108,966
March 1 — March 31 400,000 $10.08 400,000 $10,076,076

Total for quarter ended March 31, 2012 400,000 400,000 $10,076,076
April 1 — April 30 — — — $10,076,076
May 1 — May 31 — — — $10,076,076
June 1 — June 30 = = = $10,076,076

Total for quarter ended June 30, 2012 — —_ $10,076,076
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Item 6. Exhibits

Exhibit Incorporated by Reference Filed
Number Description of Exhibit Form File No. Filing Date Herewith
31.1 Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certifications & @hief Executive X

Officer and Principal Financial Officer
32.1* Section 1350 Certifications

101.INS**  XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema
101.CAL** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Libkse
101.DEF** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkise
101.LAB**  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase

X X X X X X X

101.PRE** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentationkbase

* |n accordance with Item 601(b)(32)(ii) of Regtiten S-K and SEC Release No. 34-47986, the ceaatifias furnished in Exhibit 32.1 hereto
are deemed to accompany this Form 10-Q and wilbeateemed “filed” for purposes of Section 18 & Exchange Act. Such certifications
will not be deemed to be incorporated by referent@eany filing under the Securities Act or the Bange Act.

** |n accordance with Rule 406T of Regulation Stfie information furnished in these exhibits willtie deemed “filed” for purposes of
Section 18 of the Exchange Act. Such exhibits mdlf be deemed to be incorporated by referenceamydiling under the Securities Act or
Exchange Act.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, the registrant has duly causisdréport to be signed on its behalt
the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Century Aluminum Company

Date: August 9, 2012 By: /s/ Michael A. Bless
Michael A. Bless

President and Chief Executive Officer (PrincipakExtive Officer,
Principal Financial Officer and Authorized Officer)
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Exhibits
Exhibit Incorporated by Reference Filed
Number Description of Exhibit Form File No. Filing Date Herewith
31.1 Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certifications & @hief Executive X

Officer and Principal Financial Officer
32.1* Section 1350 Certifications

101.INS**  XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema
101.CAL** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Libkse
101.DEF**  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkise
101.LAB**  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase

X X X X X X X

101.PRE** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentationkbase

* In accordance with Item 601(b)(32)(ii) of Regtibn S-K and SEC Release No. 84986, the certifications furnished in Exhibit 3Rdretc
are deemed to accompany this Form 10-Q and wilbeateemed “filed” for purposes of Section 18 @& Exchange Act. Such certifications
will not be deemed to be incorporated by referent@eany filing under the Securities Act or the Bange Act.

** |n accordance with Rule 406T of Regulation Stfie information furnished in these exhibits willti® deemed “filed” for purposes of

Section 18 of the Exchange Act. Such exhibits mdlf be deemed to be incorporated by referenceamydiling under the Securities Act or
Exchange Act.
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EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF DISCLOSURE IN CENTURY ALUMINUM COM PANY'S
QUARTERLY REPORT FILED ON FORM 10-Q

I, Michael A. Bless, certify that:

1) | have reviewed this quarterly report on FA®RQ of Century Aluminum Compar

2) Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortémnstate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigatisg with respect to the peri
covered by this report;

3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statememd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtf@ periods presented in this report;

4) The registrant's other certifying officer(sydrare responsible for establishing and maintgmisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)1%nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant andénav

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedoifee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

b) Designed such internal control over finanoggarting, or caused such internal control overrfaia reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmare with generally accepted accounting principles

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrali$slosure controls and procedures and presentiisi report the Company's
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discisantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by this report
based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegtegnt's internal control over financial reportih@t occurred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofigital quarter in the case of an annual repo#d) tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reportinggdan

5) The registrant's other certifying officer(sddrhave disclosed, based on the Company's masttewaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant's auditansl éhe audit committee of the registrant's boardirgctors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknes in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize apdrt financial information; ar

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmiifiole in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date:August 9, 2012
/s MICHAEL A. BLESS
Name: Michael A. Bless

Title: President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer and Principal Finaridtficer)




Exhibit 32.1

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer and Chef Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of tle Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18
U.S.C. 1350)

In connection with the quarterly report on FormQ®f Century Aluminum Company (the “Company”) foetquarter ended June 30,
2012, as filed with the Securities and Exchangm@esion on the date hereof (the “Report”), MichaeBless, as President and Chief

Executive Officer of the Company, hereby certifiggrsuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adoptedupnt to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of his knovged

1. This Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchafagieof 1934; an

2. The information contained in this Report fairly peats, in all material respects, the financial dorand results of operations of
Company.

/sl MICHAEL A. BLESS
By:  Michael A. Bless
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer (PrincipakExtive Officer and Principal Financial Officer)

Date: August 9, 2012

A signed original of this written statement reqdil®y Section 906 has been provided to the Compadynél be retained by the
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exah&@ammission or its staff upon request.



